The Reset to People-Power



The Reset

to

People - Power

by Hans Schicht

"The Reset to People-Power" by Hans Schicht © January 2021 ISBN - 978-99903-38-74-4 www.reset-to-people-power.com From Unmasking
the
Merchant of Debt
to
The Reset
of
People-Power

by Hans Schicht

Contents

Prologue	5
The Red-Line	7
The Crux of the Matter	8
The Wealth-Transfer Machine	13
The Merchant of Debt	29
The Money Spine	34
Financial Spider-Webbing	38
The Merchant's Control over the Media	45
The Debt Virus	49
Debtors March	50
The Final Hour of Debauchery	51
The Planned Reset by the Merchants of Debt	59
The Death of Banking	62
Back to Grass-Roots	65
Enough is Enough.	70
Resentment and Anger	74
Grass-Roots Revolution	76
The Slaying of the Merchant of Debt	78
Cleaning up	83
Gold and Silver	91
The Free Flow of Money	95
The Essence and Rules of	98
the Living Universe	98
Extracts from "The Cosmos of Time"	100
Bionomics	103
The Author	112
Comments	113

Note:

This book contains a collection of essays written over a period of time starting in 1998 and I beg the reader to have patience when encountering some occasional repetitions.

Prologue

This is a call to Freedom. Freedom of living one's own life as a dignified human being, not as a slave, freedom of movement, decision making, expression not fenced in by foreign restrictions built on fear, intimidation and subjugation.

But freedom is not free. Freedom needs vigilance and courage to defend. Unfortunately however, we neglected our vigilance and let our courage slip.

Dark forces have penetrated the livelihood and heart of society and wrought haywire with it.

Morals have gone out of the window, the main stay of society, the family has been torn to pieces, common people have no more say, they have become the slaves of disconnected governments, put in place by only a handful of ruthless financial Grandies.

Today's World Order has been built by power hungry parasites around a monetary andbanking system that is intrinsically fraudulent and parasitic.

The longer we let these parasites suck our blood, the longer human suffering will endure.

The Grandies are using every trick and opportunity to expand their power ever further. A glaring example is their recent mis-use of the common corona flu virus in their strife for total people-control.

Their world-wide controlled Media mispresents the covir19 virus and blows it up as if it were the black-death of the Middle Ages, notwithstanding the fact that it has proven less contagious, malign or deadly than the common flu. Read the truth in the still free-reporting news sources, and forget the fake statistics published by the controlled and directed Media.

Put fear in people's mind and you can control the masses and herd them in whatever direction you want.

Impose stringent lockdowns and prohibit gatherings in name of protecting the people.

Their first step of people-control came after their 'Twin Towers' collapsed, when they installed electronic border checks and street cameras and started controlling the international money flow. All under the name of 'protecting' the people against designated terrorists. Do not forget to ask yourself: cui bono'? - to whom is it a benefit?

And very much like as what lies behind the protection and intervention racket against fake terrorist threats, a very different picture of the virus threat arises, when analyzing the covid19 virus on the same basis of 'cui bono'.

Covid19 is a most convenient tool dug-up, manipulated and used by the Grandies to put fear into the people's mind and to control them.

All these measures imposed are nothing else than scaring the people and fortifying totalitarian control.

Suppressing all demonstrations against their policies by declaring them illegal and by showing the might of 'their' police.

By distracting the people with a Covid19, the Grandies can undisturbed proceed in scheming 'their planned Great Reset' for the total enslavement of humanity and ultimate world control.

Would Covid19 really become a threat to mankind, then it will be solely to blame on the ongoing manipulation of the virus in the research laboratories controlled by the Grandies.

The Red-Line

There exists only one culprit, one-hundred percent responsible for the gaping black hole the world is relentlessly being sucked into. Its name is credit and money creation out of nothing by the Merchant of Debt.

Since early dawn humans created, obtained and possessed assets: hunting grounds, tools, arms, land, dwellings and status assets. Assets were exchanged and their values compared: three eggs for one fish, two cows for a dwelling and one horse for a kingdom. With inter-human relations expanding, common denominators for asset evaluation appeared. For instance shells, pearls, copper ingots, gold and silver. Because of their practicality and stable intrinsic value, it became the latter, the gold and the silver, that in the end conquered the world as general standards of value, as 'money'. Gold and silver became the blood of society and the mirror of human activity and achievement.

With gold and silver people prospered and cultures blossomed. Gold and silver became the monetary anchors that nobody could fiddle around with and everything could be related to.

But then the devil stepped in and began to interfere with the solid gold and silver anchors. On the sly, step by step, some shrewd Proto-Bankers succeeded in taking control of the people's 'money', the gold and the silver. Then the once solid anchors began to slip. And instead of remaining independent beacons and the blood of society, money changed from its passive role to become an active player in its own right, that is to say the Banker's right.

It was the Banker who from then on decided that money should work and how it should work: for him. It was the day that money crossed the red line and turned the world - from natural grassroots growth to the benefit of everybody - into a world directed and managed from above, for the sole benefit of a secluded, parasitic elite.

The Crux of the Matter

The Merchant of Debt, the Banker, has taken over the world. Without spilling a drop of blood, he transfers the wealth of people and governments into his pockets by stealth, under the cloak of order, law and correctness. The Merchant plays his game shrewdly in total anonymity. People have as yet not the slightest inkling of how the world is being manipulated by only a few. When there is trouble, public attention is misdirected by them and the wrong parties are being blamed, while the instigator goes free in all anonymity.

The ink on the peace treaty of World War II was not yet dry, when, unnoticed, a new breed of warlord, the Merchant of Debt, went on the offensive. In seventy years the Merchant of Debt has succeeded in changing the world more profoundly than any conqueror in history before. Bankers replaced generals, lines of credit replaced the battle-fronts and banks became unassailable bunkers.

In all anonymity, the Merchant of Debt has overrun more frontiers without a shot being fired, robbed more people and governments of their assets and independence and has enslaved more people and governments than any dictator has ever succeeded in doing before. And all that under the lies of freedom of trade and capital flow, democracy, globalization, legitimacy and human rights.

A hundred years ago banking covered but a tiny fraction of the economy. Today his Majesty the Merchant of Debt reigns supreme and what he does not own outright as yet, he controls. He writes the laws and he manipulates the currencies, the financial markets and the media. He controls the State, you and me. He has stolen the real money, the gold and the silver from the people and has replaced them with what he dictates to be money: his worthless fiat paper, conjured out of thin air. He tells the governments what to do. He controls the military establishments and tells the greatest super power on earth to go to war, because he, the Merchant of Debt, is Caesar.

Look at how all the world's governments bend to the rule of the Merchant of Debt! And then to think that the Merchant's power rests only and purely on the fiat money and fiat credit that he creates out of thin air and that costs him nothing!

People control through tax legislation, rules restricting cash transactions for individuals, limiting the amount of currency crossing borders, obligatory declarations of financial transactions and so on-, all these can be traced back to the Merchant of Debt. The governments only *endorse* what he suggests and orders, because all the governments are in his pocket.

It is the Merchant's creation of a global credit bubble of unbelievable proportions that is to blame for today's unprecedented and unbalanced world population explosion, social dislocations, political tensions and ever-growing inequality and poverty, right up to wars.

In the last seventy years the world has witnessed a period of bloated, unnatural and misdirected growth, brought on by force-fed multiple injections and overdoses of his fiat credit machine which fills his coffers and empties ours, which has the disastrous effect of destabilizing the world's economies and uprooting people's lives.

If instead, nature's money, the gold and the silver with their inherent monetary discipline, would have continued being used as means of exchange, growth would have stayed sustainable, disciplined and balanced and the world would not have become unhinged.

A new kind of social parasite, the 'Bankster', alias the Merchant of Debt, has infested society, sucking the livelihood out of governments and people, turning the world upside down, usurping, corrupting and controlling everything.

With all his manipulations, corrupted practices and credit spouting, the Merchant of Debt has brought the world to the edge of a social and financial abyss of menacing proportions. The only way out for mankind to survive as human beings and not as slaves, is to **break the shackles of debt** that the 'Bankster' has imposed on people and government. By force if it has to be. Contrary to what the 'Bankster' wants us to believe, the world does not need him and his stinking banking business.

We do not need street demonstrations ending in bloody revolutions to rid us of the Bankster parasite. People do not know as yet, but there are ways and means to oust the Merchant of Debt through the ballot-box and parliaments, once his weaknesses will have been revealed.

Anonymity is the Merchant's Achilles' heel. Strip him naked of his cloak and defenceless he will fall!

The same way the Merchant of Debt controls us and all our actions and movements, enslaves us financially, follows us, registers us and fingerprints us, the same way we, the people shall in turn put the Merchant in the lime-light!

That is the way we have to go. And we shall begin with ripping him from the anonymity of his shares and bonds. We shall cut his financial spider-webbing wide open by making it illegal for companies to possess shares in other companies. And we shall strip him of all the privileges he obtained on the sly!

However, before taking the Bankster into the lime-light and show the way how to slay him, I recommend that the reader acquaints himself firstly with all with the intricacies of the Merchants Webof-Debt that the Merchant has spun around the globe.

With such in mind, I have inserted a few short essays written by me on the financial developments between 2001 and 2009, to give the reader a clear overall view of all the Merchant's actions and manipulations he has schemed through the years. After the reader has acquainted himself with the essence of these essays, I will proceed to bring the Merchant into the lime-light in the second part of this essay: "the Slaying of the Merchant of Debt". There I will bring him to justice and show how to get rid of him forever.

The closing chapter, "The Great Reset", our reset, will reveal how to live in harmony and prosper by following the laws of Nature, of the Cosmos, proven through the ages.

Jentacles of Debt Emission

Where has there ever been a greater might,

Far hidden in the darkest night,

Which rules by stealth, deceit and greed?

Which, with its tentacles of debt emission

Enslaves the world into perpetual submission,

Extracting interest from wounds that never stop to bleed?

A ruthless quest for power does drive this evil might. Malevolence, deceit, schemed out of sight. Enslaving once-free man in iron shackles forged by debt, Infusing hate, despair, revolt, when promises no longer kept.

When no one else but you stands on the breach
And crying out to everyone your voice can reach,
To warn them of the pending dangers you do sense,
Where no one else does want to see beyond his fence,
So not to be disturbed by matters distant from his mind,
Not be upset by insecurity and doubts about such kind.

When all the world around you, is found off-guard and blind And only you perceive the menace creeping up behind The moment will arrive that destiny will call Then it's up to you when all the world in debt does fall. To save your family and ever faithful friends, From under-out this bastards greedy, soiled hands.

Not to be drowned in worthless papers' ever-rising tide. Aim for real assets with value in their own and proper right. When ruthless Banksters trample, our basic human norms: Hold on to gold and silver, man's lifebuoys, proven in all storms.

H.S.

The Wealth-Transfer Machine August 2002

Till the advent of fiat money, the finances of man have always followed a certain historical sequence. The people produce the wealth. And the king receives his share, which his barons collect for him for a fee. Then the king and entourage spend, and the gold and silver find their way back to the citizens for goods and services rendered. Occasionally the king might decide to buy foreign goods, or lose his wealth through defeat in war. Then the gold and silver will begin circulating in the next country.

The more industrious and prosperous the citizens were, the more gold and silver were amassed, the greater the common wealth of country and king became. The king would not have much wealth if his subjects were not prosperous. Industrious citizens created wealth, not the king. King and government were only necessary evils needed for defence and administration.

Throughout history there has always existed a certain, proportionate, relationship between the wealth of the citizens and the wealth of the king. The healthiest relationship was, and still is, when the scales are tipped well in favor of the citizens.

Contrary to general belief, under normal circumstances and in a healthy environment, the king's share hardly ever amounted to more than a minor percentage of the common wealth. The need for coining in itself already, combined with what we know about the volumes of gold and silver coinage estimated to have been circulating between the citizens, should be sufficient proof thereof. A wise king understood that his own wealth depended on the prosperity of his subjects.

Whenever the king over-taxed his citizens, wasted too much on arms, luxury and extravaganzas, the gold flow from the citizens toward the king became lopsided. Then the wealth of the people decreased and the productivity of the country declined. And when at times the shift in wealth became unbearable, the citizens either revolted, ousted the king or the country went under.

The might of empires and civilizations, mirrored by the gold and silver in circulation, has always depended on the productive capacity of the citizens and available resources. Human prosperity thrives on grass roots, same as happens in nature. And it thrives best when it is free growing, broad based, and from the ground up, meaning from the ordinary people up. That is what capitalism should be and was all about in former times. The West flourished on *natural capitalism* till the advent of fiat money.

All of Nature thrives on capitalistic principles. Its multitudes live and prosper in free competition. But when man strayed from Nature's rules he had to pay dearly. Natural Capitalism works when there is minimal government interference and free competition, when everybody has a chance, when the laws are impartially applied, when there is a level playing field and the markets are free, when money flows freely, possesses intrinsic value and is not somebody else's debt, and when there is a free and open flow of information. None of these requisites for a natural capitalism has survived. Natural Capitalism is dead, stone dead. The Merchant of Debt has killed it.

Grass-roots is not only the most important, the least understood pre-condition for growth and prosperity, it is the indispensable prerequisite for it.

Prosperity 'from the ground up', is a one-way street and should never ever be directed or dictated from the top.

Till the middle of the seventeenth century gold and silver flowed freely among the citizens and between the citizens and the king. But when the king's demands and his share of the common wealth became excessive, the people united and the counter-force of democracy was born. Kings were ousted or saw their power reduced by parliaments. Over time, however, these young democratic governments, instead of remaining 'part of the people' changed in character. Slowly but surely they took over the role once played by the king and turned into usurping powers in their own right.

For about two hundred years the two-way, self-correcting, wealth relationship between the citizens on the one hand and the king or now the young democratic governments on the other hand, maintained itself. In a democratic ambiance, adjustments took place more smoothly, thanks to the ballot box. The bulk of the gold and the silver continued circulating among the people and in smaller part between the State and the citizens.

It was the glory time of grass roots entrepreneurship. It was the time of the industrial revolution, great inventions, cultural creativity and new horizons. Enterprises grew, self-financed, out of profits. Taxation was moderate and focused. Growth was natural and efficient. Governments were humble. The economies grew unrestricted. The Banker was not needed... but... he forced his way in through the back door and within one hundred years took over the world by stealth.

The sequence from the birth, ascent, to the decay and death of civilizations is mirrored by the steady migration of the bulk of the wealth in the form of gold and silver from the citizen to the reigning power. Power flows with the money. When we analyse the present state of western civilization, we have but to discern who it is, that holds the real money, the gold and the silver, and then we will know who holds the reigns of power. It is no longer the elected government, but the obscure Banker.

The first Banker was a money-changer, intermediary, custodian, transfer and payment agent. Then, when the Banker saw that the Church had much idle wealth lying around, which could be made productive by loaning it out, shrewdly the Banker convinced Rome of the merits of interest compensation. And sometime during the fifteenth century the Pope annulled the ban on usury, and gave his blessing for interest compensation on loans. From there on the Banker became the financier.

Once interest compensation on loans was accepted and became the norm, the Banker pursued his aims further, extracting concession after concession from the State. One of his greatest days, and the citizen's blackest, was when he obtained the legal permission to increase his loan portfolio to a value worth many times his bank's registered capital. Overnight the Banker's potential working capital multiplied many times over, and in some cases even up to twelve times his capital input, depending on local legislation. It gave the Banker a multiple advantage over all other business enterprises and laid the basis for the Banker's stellar ascent, and his subsequent grab of control of the prime of industry, commerce and business. Although still restricted to certain limits, the multiple application and usage of his basic capital implied that the Banker now possessed the legal authorization to create money out of nothing. Creating money out of nothing and lending it out against interest became the Banker's core business. It paved the way for the Banker to go out and buy the world.

Now, if there is one thing the Banker hates, and that is competition. And because of this the Banker had to wring further privileges from the government. One was the establishment of a privately controlled bank of banks, the Central or Reserve Bank. The other privilege that was granted, to the same Central Bank, carried the exclusive license to issue and manage the government's paper currency. In one coup, banking had become a closed shop and the State had ceded the control of its currency to the Banker.

Not only was the Banker now able to multiply his capital by loaning it out, but he had obtained the supreme power to create the money itself out of nothing. He had obtained the right to issue fiat money against government debt. The further the Banker could tempt the government to go into debt, the more fiat money he could issue against their treasury papers. The greater the country's debt, the more fiat money in circulation, the greater is the erosion of money and the greater will be the wealth siphoned off from the people by the Banker.

Nearly all Central Banks or Reserve Banks in this world are privately owned and controlled and not owned by the State, contrary to what all the governments would like their people to believe.

Private ownership implies that Central Banks will always serve the Banker's interests first and not the country's interest.

As long as the currency circulation was in the form of gold or silver, or had legally to be covered 100 percent by gold or silver, the Banker remained restricted in his lending activities to the sum of deposits his clients held at the bank, of course less a prudent safety margin in the event of unexpected withdrawals. One coin in was one coin out. There was just not any more to lend out. But all that changed with the introduction of paper currency.

In the very beginning, when the first paper currency made its appearance, one paper unit was issued for each precious metal unit held in the treasury. In other words, money in circulation was backed 100% by precious metals, but not for long. Once the State ran out of cash, the Banker had no trouble convincing the State that it was not absolutely necessary to maintain a one hundred percent precious metal backing for the nation's currency. The public seldom bothered to exchange their paper claims for the real metal. And anyhow, nobody would find out that easily, if a little bit more paper had been issued than there was gold in the vaults. From there on the precious metal backing began its disappearance act. In 1896 the gold cover of the total sum of US dollars in circulation had already receded to under 4%. Today, all paper money is one hundred percent fiat money. There is no more backing for any paper currency. The gold reserves of the Central Banks have no relationship whatsoever to the currency in circulation anymore! The published gold reserves, which form part of the country's total reserves, are only there for the purpose of covering foreign obligations or for intervention in the markets to stabilize the currency.

In so far as these published gold reserves still have credibility is another, delicate, matter. Inconsistencies in various Central Bank and IMF statements have lately been found, which imply that a greater part of the published official Central Bank gold holdings might in fact be mere paper claims on gold and do not represent actual gold bullion any longer. The same applies to the IMF itself. A Banker wants to expand and grow his business. Depending on which currency he controls, the more dollars, euros, or yen the Banker succeeds in bringing into circulation, the wider his loan territory. And the more loans he manages to place, the greater his income and the mightier his power becomes. Regular interest income is the Banker's bread and butter. The Banker does not really want loans to be paid back. The Banker likes his loans to 'work and squeeze' ad infinitum.

The Banker's empire is his debt empire. It is this simple fact that makes the world go round ... that is....until the music stops ... maybe sooner rather than later.

Debt is negative money and negative money makes negative people. Far from being beneficial for society, the Banker has become a wealth sucking parasite. And contrary to public belief, to function, society does not need Bankers.

Like an evil cancer, banking has spread its tentacles throughout and invaded daily life. First the State was subtly seduced and corrupted to spend more than its income. With the result that, in order to cover the ensuing budget deficits, taxes had to be increased, government bonds emitted, and ever more paper money brought into circulation, all measures which benefited the Banker. The people and business in turn, burdened by increased taxation, were forced to take up more and more loans. Free enterprise was not able to finance itself out of profits anymore. To add insult to injury the Banker saw to it that, in case of any default, loans were given preferential treatment over shares. The people, enterprise and government became bank dependent.

The socialists, being the great spenders, were groomed and supported in elections. Legislators were corrupted. Social programs like social security and medicare and expensive public projects were pushed and supported by the Banker. The arms industry was especially nursed. Wars were instigated to bleed the national treasuries. Napoleon, the Kaiser and later the Nazis and the Communists were always amply financed. Step-by-step the Loan Piper got everybody dancing to his tune. Slowly but surely the governments and people walked innocently, through his bank palaces, into his debt camps.

"Spend, spend, spend", the Banker will give you all the paper money for anything you wish to spend on. That is patriotic, for the economy and the welfare of the nation.

And the Banker conjured all the paper fiat out of thin air and in exchange the Banker took the State's, the economy's and the people's real assets. Never before in history has there been such a total transfer of wealth taking place in such a short time, without a shot being fired.

The Nations are in debt, the people are, industry is, commerce and business is. Everybody owes. Except the Banker, he owns and controls it all and still does not have enough. And in the same way he enslaved the people at home, the Banker enslaved the rest of the world.

Once there was a quorum of central banks, the global Central Bank of Central Banks was founded, the B.I.S., the Bank for International Settlements, which, at a later stage, together with the post-war IMF and the World Bank, brought all the world's finances under one central control and one set of rules as dictated by the Banker - and woe to him who ever dared to step out of line.

Development aid out of thin air was pushed with a stroke of the credit pen out of thin air. But never were the developing countries allowed or given a chance to pay the loans back. To that purpose commodity prices were manipulated and controlled, politicians bought, students were granted scholarships to study financial and economic indoctrination courses on US campuses, controlled by the Banker, and groomed to stay loyal to the Banker's fraternities.

Step-by-step the Banker wedged his way in-between the State and the citizen. Step-by-step the Banker undermined the morality of both the State and the people, pushing his sugar-coated credit. Pushing social legislation, pushing hundreds of different credit cards, even for children! Stealth and anonymity are the Banker's cloak. And he saw to it that - anonymity of share holdings and voting became legalized, that - dividends were taxed only once, at the source only, - that his trusts and foundations, through which he controls his empire, stayed exempt from taxation. It enabled him to build an invisible chain of interlocking anonymous companies into a mighty spiderweb of holdings, far from the public eye, where not even the hierarchy of CEOs knows the connections and relationships. The Banker alone has the sole control from one central point.

Whereas anonymity and tax exemptions served the Banker's quest to build an empire, they proved fatal for the world economies and finance. They led to the transfer and dislocation of wealth from the broad spectrum of the population to a pyramiding concentration of capital at the top. They replaced good old-fashioned natural people's capitalism with megalomania and whimsical financial despotism.

Not content with interest on a yearly basis, compounded interest was invented, calculated month by month.

Take-overs and mergers became easy to construe and to finance with all the money and credit created out of nothing and through a simple exchange of shares.

The Banker's 'out of thin air' credits and money would finance anything, any size, as long as there was profit for him to extract. Totally uneconomic behemoth conglomerates were glued together, with the purpose of being sucked dry later. Established economic rules were overturned and the 'new economy' heralded!

And the Banker was always careful to act within the financial laws, he himself had instigated and promoted. It is to the detriment of society, that there is little recourse left for the public in legal actions. The Banker has seen to that.

Fiat Money has broken the corrective natural cycle of wealth flowing from the citizens to the king or government and back to the people. Neither is there any real wealth flowing back to the Developing world, in exchange for their commodities. Only worthless paper is! A huge bubble of fictitious paper wealth has been created out of thin air, obstructing the flow of real wealth back to the productive people.

Interestingly real assets are not being accumulated any more in the treasuries of the king or the governments either. The Banker saw to it that every government today is a debtor to him, not only in the case of the developing countries.

And might we ask where could real wealth then be heading? Where could all the gold leased out by the Central Banks have gone? Leased out, to where, to whom? Not all of it to India or the Middle East! Where did the IMF gold go, not their paper SDRs and SDR Certificates, but the real gold?

For instance, where did the massive 1.950 tons of gold exported from the USA in the last quarter of 1999 go? Did Edmundo Safra know anything and was subsequently murdered only a few weeks later?

Gold flows to where the power resides. And who is it that has the power today? Did the Banker set up the gold leasing schemes to make easy money on the gold carry trade or might his ulterior purpose be to channel all the world's gold into his private vaults? Was the Banker not also the one who pushed the governments into privatizing State property, only to end up as the major share-holder of the former, now privatized State enterprises?

And not content with having extracted the people's long term savings in exchange for worthless paper, the Banker has made sure that even present earnings would be creamed off and that the people's savings could only be invested in institutions controlled by him. And so the Banker planned shiny investment vehicles and services for the public, to seduce them to stock markets and casinos controlled and manipulated by him, the Banker. That is, with the sole purpose to fleece the 'sheeple'. The Dow supreme at the top, followed by the Nasdaq, Standard & Poor's, commodity markets, funds etc.

As for foreign governments the Banker saw to it that there would always be an ample supply of interest-bearing treasury papers and government bonds available to invest in, so they would not ask payment back in real wealth. The Banker kept the real wealth himself.

By pushing loans of up to 125% of underlying real estate value and calculated never to be paid back, the Banker laid claim to the people's properties in exchange for still more of his fiat paper.

And the Banker saw to it that the governments introduced new tax laws and 401K retirement plans to hoard even more 'sheeple' into his paper money casinos.

And the Banker-controlled media heralded out to the whole world the marvels of Wall Street. Always positive in outlook and where necessary, pro-forma book-keeping was applied or rules and statistics were changed. And when the public ran out of earnings to invest, the Banker corrupted the politicians to invest the people's social security, medicare money and state pensions into his casinos.

Cleverly he uses his lackeys, his brokers, market makers, hedge funds, credit rating companies, his media empire, the bought politicians etc. Their tools are disinformation, short selling, derivatives and shares, interest-, currency- and commodity price manipulation and creative accounting.

The Dollar-Banker is leading the way into global debt enslavement. But not to worry, the Euro-Banker, who was slowed down by the time-consuming birth of the European Union and the late arrival of the Euro, the common European currency, will catch up! The possibilities for the Banker are too tempting to be missed. With the obligatory exchange of all European national currencies for Euros, the constituent European Union governments will soon have lost control of the now common currency. Its exploit has been entrusted to the Euro Banker, smiling all the way to the vault.

World-wide Euro credit pushing will soon equal Dollar-credit pushing. And all the European Union governments and people will soon be swimming in the same debt morass as their transatlantic brethren. What concerns the rest of the world: tomorrow they will find themselves doubly indebted between the Dollar and the Euro.

Although physical slavery was abolished in the nineteenth century, the 20th century has taken the world back to square one, with millions of people again being subjugated. This time not physically, but by a more sinister, hideous, new kind of slavery, invisible and indirect: debt slavery induced by the Banker.

Following the history of the ascent of the Banker over the last two hundred years it becomes obvious that it was never the governments, but the invisible spider web of global fiat money and debt the Banker has spun, which is responsible for all the financial upheavals, market bubbles and crashes, depressions and defaults of many enterprises and countries, the rape of Africa, Latin America, SE Asia and Russia, and even wars.

Banking, far from having developed naturally in the wake of economic growth and necessity, has shrewdly, methodically and with stealth been designed and advanced by the Banker, led by ulterior motives. His empire spread like an evil cancer, undermining and uprooting the established order, replacing it with the Banker's Order.

Our world would have been better off without. Banks are not needed and were never needed. Even in our highly sophisticated economies of today, money needs only two functions: one, as a means of exchange, proper functioning of which modern communication and data technology can easily provide, and the other, as a store of value.

The western monetary system is based on fraud.

Let me explain:

When one puts all the combined wealth of a nation consisting of all the money in circulation, plus all movable assets, the real estate, the industry, infrastructure and strategic reserves into one basket and then lets a third party, the banker, get away with creating and adding phantom 'legal tender' money out of thin air, then the banker is in a position to acquire whatever assets he desires out of the original basket for nothing, thereby diluting the assets of the original owners. The counterfeiting and that is what it boils down to, works as follows:

Where not explicitly stipulated that the specific depositor's money loaned out by the bank against interest has been blocked and thus has been temporarily taken out of circulation,

The banker creates additional money by loaning out to third parties up to a substantial multiple of total client deposits without asking for their consent or their knowledge.

- Besides creating the money the banker, by usurping jurisdiction over the created money making it 'his' money, has also usurped the power over how and where the new money will be applied.
- The practice by the banks to pay some interest on accounts is only a ploy to attract deposits and is legally not connected to the bank's own loan policy.

The only restriction, imposed by the Bank of International Settlement, is that the bank's subscribed capital should cover at least 8% of loans extended.

Additional to their own capital, certain government bonds as well as certain percentage of government-guaranteed mortgage holdings are allowed to be added to the bank's capital base. Lately off-balance sheet accounts, derivatives, swaps, and the packaging of debt papers like sub-mortgages and so on have also substantially added to the banks' capacity to create new money out of nothing. It boils down to:

The Banks inflate the money in circulation by creating additional money up to at least an amount of 12 times their own capital base. Thus making money on twelve times their capital base! For instance by using depositors' money a net interest income of 4% gives the bank a real profit of 4 times 12 which makes 48% on its capital! Nobody can beat the banker at that! And that is the reason the bankers have taken over the world.

The Central Bank comes marching in:

For minimum cost it prints and provides all the new money the government needs in exchange for government bonds. The Central Bank, in cohorts with the major banks might either sell the bonds on to investors, or keep a certain percentage in their own coffers. The money received for the bonds from the investors, far from taking it out of circulation and canceling it out against the new money printed for to the government, as it should, the Central Bank and its shareholders, the major banks, are keeping these bonds plus the money received from the investors as assets in their books illegally! If that does not boil down to outright fraud, I do not know! Whereas, if properly done, the increase in the money supply, each time the government subscribes for a loan, should always and immediately be cancelled out against money in circulation received if properly done.

Correctly the book entries of the Central Bank should run as follows:

- 1) New money printed against proceeds to be received.
- Government bonds received against new money printed. (once handed over)
- Proceeds received (from new bond holders) against government bonds. (once sold)
- 4) Proceeds to be received against proceeds received.

In this way the Central Bank's books would be in balance, but they are not. With bonds (not having paid for them!) and proceeds illegally kept back in its coffers, the books of the Central Bank can never balance. **That is where the fraud resides**. And that is the reason the Central Bank refuses to have its books audited! I rest my case.

NB: Not mentioned here are the secondary frauds:

- The disguised Repo (repossessed) ball game with bonds played between the Central Bank and the major banks.
- The manipulation of the interest rate, the financial and the gold and the silver markets. (there are no more free markets!)
- The interest rates in themselves, where, with the principal of the loan already being phantom money, the money needed to pay for the added interest on the loan has additionally to be created.

The more the government and the people get into debt, the more loans have to be taken up, the more phantom money the banker can create, the more interest income the banker will receive and the more profit the banker will be making. Profits he in turn can add to the bank's capital base so as to give him ever greater leeway to further his loan portfolio. Ad infinitum.

And that is the way the Wealth Transfer Machine has been designed from the beginning: by fraud.

In the last hundred years the Merchant of Debt, the Banker, has taken over the world, its industries, the Media (to misinform the people), infra-structures. Enslaved its people and governments, destroyed grass- roots entrepreneurship, the family and people's self-esteem, all through fraud. Buying assets at home and abroad with phantom money and phantom loans. Setting up fraudulent takeovers, mergers, IPO's, buy-outs, development loans and so on.

Alas, banking has become so interwoven in western economy and finance that by now it has become too much of an essential part and a necessary evil for the West's survival. Banking has penetrated deeply into daily life. Not only would our western financial and monetary structures as they stand today collapse without banks, but it could also spell the end of the whole of Western Civilization, which has been built around it.

A return to the gold *standard*, and the abolition of fiat money would only mean a temporary respite. They are not the solution. The Banker would still own the world and in his subtle way he would soon return in a new disguise. It is the whole system, based on interest, credit and fiat money, financial laws and control of the currency, which is rotten to the core.

I do not think that parliaments or congresses still have the will or the power to correct the situation, they have been bought anyway. An unexpected dictatorial power might intervene and call for the nationalization of all banks or order their closure. Maybe a revolution might bring the necessary changes and redistribution of wealth. But what then? The cancer has already advanced too far for risk free and effective surgery.

In the end, events might well run their natural course of decay, break up, and final chaos. One day history will show that the banks and entourage were only a one-time manifestation, unique to Western Civilization.

Maybe history is already running its course. Wherever we look the rot has begun showing up: the SE Asia crisis, the developing countries' debt crisis, Indonesia, Mexico, Argentina, Turkey, the lingering default of Japan, the return of darkness in Africa, the sudden rise in global unemployment and defaults, the wavering stock and credit markets, international terrorism, WTO protesters, growing discontent, corruption, moral decay, the Third World's sprawling shanty towns, and so on.

Not only is the apple rotting on the outside. The rot has already penetrated deep into the very core of the Banker's empire proper. There are some vague, first indications from Banker's Land that the situation is getting out of hand, that the Merchant of Debt cannot control his own disciples any longer, and that internal strife and betrayal are undermining the very Empire of Debt. After all, it is only a paper empire with its armed forces by proxy!

The Empire of Debt itself is beginning to look just as corrupted and opaque as all the governments, international organizations and people that it has infiltrated and subverted. Greed, rivalry, intrigue and arrogance amongst the Empire's own rank and file is becoming more blatant and open by the day. The barons have gone on the rampage unrestrained, raiding and looting the financial markets to their own personal benefit as if there were no tomorrow. They are even at one another's throat. Everything goes! It is unbelievable what is presently going on in Banker's Land. Trillions are being thrown around left and right like dirt. Markets floating on thin air, totally unhinged from reality. World finance is getting out of hand and rapidly approaching crisis level, without a hope left whatsoever that a new equilibrium will be found.

This is not going to be just an isolated financial crisis. It is going to be much more than that. It is a crisis of principles versus absolute power, Banker's Power. A deeply rooted structural crisis, affecting the very foundations of inter-human relationships, which is at stake: the way we live or are being lived.

I do not think the Banker will have his ill-gotten wealth for much longer. The looming financial storm is going to sweep him overboard.

By understanding the ways of Nature, wealth will return to the people one way or the other. But that might take a tedious and chaotic while. There is too much that has to be corrected and restored. The inverted wealth pyramid has to be turned back onto a solid and broad base and all wealth redistributed. Only war, revolution and chaos can do the latter. Life is not run from the top. Life grows from grass roots and to grass roots we will return in the end.

August 2002

The Merchant of Debt July 2001

In the last 50 years the might of the Bankers has risen dramatically relative to all other enterprise. And today through mergers and takeovers one single overarching conglomeration of power dominates global finance.

Through the inducement of biased financial legislation by stealth and extracting multiple concessions from the governments, the 'Banksters' have succeeded in obtaining a virtual monopoly over national currencies, credit creation and international money markets. Concessions have enabled them to carry loan portfolios to amounts twelve times or more their capital base. It has given them a multiple earnings advantage over whatever other businesses resulting in their dominance over enterprise. Misguiding legislation by stealth obtained and special favors have brought a fatal reversal in economic order. Today, financial power concentrated in a few hands dominates the world's finances and economies. What suits the banks is what counts, not what is best for country and people.

It should be well understood that, in such a new world order the old economics of Adam Smith have lost their validity. Free competition and free markets have become a myth. Financial dictatorship decrees from the top down, smothering all that is still left over from once free natural capitalism. We find the same closed club of honchos at the top financial institutions, enterprises and businesses, government departments, military suppliers and non-governmental organizations, the so-called N.G.O.'s. They play ball at the highest level conniving, in mutual back-ups and cover-ups. The same, the same and the same!!! But the more we scrutinize 'the same' the more it transpires that a powerful cabal must be hiding behind the scenes, secretive, highly organized and with far-reaching control over global finance, politics and the media.

Till recently only the Rockefeller dynasty, headed by scion David and supported by the Rothschilds had the prerequisites to fit the position. All roads led to the Rockefeller Center where the financial core, the mainstay and control of the their Empire resided: merchant banking, trusts and funds controlling from oil to mining, to the armaments industries, to airlines, insurance, trading companies, to universities ad infinitum.

The Rockefellers tentacles reached into the Council of Foreign Relations, the Trilateral Commission, the CIA and the FBI, the IMF, World Bank and BIS, the World Economic Council, the World Economic Forum in Davos, and Bilderbergers. Into the Media: United Press International, Associated Press and AOL-Time Warner located conveniently next door. Into the top universities: MIT and Harvard.

Running along with the Rockefellers are their 'cohorts', or lesser grandees. But they are not to be trusted 100%. They might put their own interests first. As long as the cohorts don't upset the apple cart all is fine. But woe betide when betraying!

Don Allan's "the Federal Reserve Bank, a Study of Corporate Influence" which used to be found on www.lawgiver.org and was compiled in 1976, is a bit out of date, but it does provide interesting reading. It shows the relationships between the Rothschilds, the Rockefellers, Lazard Bros, Morgan, Brown Bros Harriman, Lehman Brothers, Kuhn Loeb and the Schroeders, all coming together in the FED of NY, City Bank, Hanover Bank, Chase, The National Bank of Commerce, Equitable Life, Mutual Life and Guaranty Trust. Don Allen's Rockefeller chart shows the link between the Fed of New York, Standard Oil of Indiana, General Motors, Allied Chemical and Equitable Life, plus all the officer and director interlocks in: General Electric (controls CNBC and other media), American Express, General Motors, AT&T, NW Bell, Chrysler, International Mineral & Chem, US Steel, Exxon, Inco, Allied Chemicals, Wachovia, Reynolds, 3M, Honeywell, Sperry Rand etc.

Let me add here that the Federal Reserve itself is owned by the major US Banks, and this includes Citi Group and Morgan-Chase of the Rockefeller stable, plus all the US banks which have the words 'national' in their names. Many mergers and take-overs have found place since then and the financial power of the Rockefellers must have gained considerably relative to the Rothschilds until David's death. There is the incorporation of Morgan and Chase for instance and the mushrooming credit card business, with its world wide data-base of user info!

Visa and Master Card are run by a consortium of major banks headed by Chase and Citi Group, and American Express Credit Card by the American Express Co, also Rockefeller. The recent merger of AOL-Time-Warner, the monopoly proceedings against Microsoft, and the irregular, selective? hammering of IT shares could be viewed as the Rockefellers acting to get a hold on the computer, software and information business.

So, we see that the Rockefellers are quite capable of occupying the center stage. Don't they have it all under their wings already? A government within the United States? Or could Washington be considered a government within the Rockefeller Empire?

Who organized Bretton Woods, the IMF, the World Bank and donated the land the UN is built on? Where did the ideas of the New World Order, Globalization and the World Trade Organization start?

And why is it that nothing ever changes after elections? Because the Master runs the show.

The Rockefellers are dollar bankers and bankers power is measured by the sway of their credit empire. To grow, ever more fiat dollars have to be created and brought into circulation (out of thin air, at no cost, courtesy of their FED).

Rivals like gold, silver, the euro, the yen or even the pound sterling are not to be tolerated. Hyper computers manipulating trillions of dollars in derivatives are steering the markets. Computer quotations and reality have become two different things. Just wait for the trillions to evaporate to see where the real values stand.

To conquer the world, armies have been replaced by fiat money and derivatives and generals by money managers with hyper computers. Financial power stands for having the world and its citizens eternally indebted and credit dependent.

The banker is the one dictating the dollar policy for the US. The government has little say in currency matters! A strong dollar is what the Rockefellers want, but this is not implicit of what the US needs. US industrial, mining, agriculture and service industries and prosperity at home have been deferred to second place.

And should the dollar ever succumb to adversities or lose its financial advantage, the Rothschilds and the Rockefellers are prepared and quite capable of launching their own global fiat currency. A digital currency 'said' to be covered by gold. But by gold which will become dust in the vaults of the R& Rs, where no living soul will be able to lay his hands on it. A blue print for such digital gold currency has already been tentatively published by the Rothschild's World Gold Council.

(see: http://www.gold.org under digital gold file #1)

In Europe the parallel debt empire of the Rothschilds is much less obvious, more discreet, less aggressive, more loosely knitted and broader based. There are the French and the British Rothschilds. They have their own financial empire and at the same time they 'serve' as financial advisors to the royal courts of Europe, the lesser nobility and to an array of continental grandees. European Royalty is not a poor house.

Through the ages the royal fortunes have grown to considerable size with few exceptions. From old, it was expected of entrepreneurs to offer share-holdings in their ventures to the Crown, so as to obtain the protection and favors of the reigning monarch. By not paying taxes and by having the people pay for their living expenses, European Royalty has done rather well through the centuries. And concerning the Rothschilds, counselling must have been pretty advantageous for the royal bankers.

The affairs of the Rockefellers and Rothschilds are interwoven. Of late though, internal divergence and tensions seem to have arisen. The Rockefeller empire is dollar based and the Rothschild empire euro based. And I cannot imagine that the aggressive ongoing dollar pushing by the Rockefellers is going down well with the Rothschilds. Firstly the expansionary dollar policies are due to infringe on Rothschild's territory and secondly the un-kosher Rockefeller finances might kill the goose which lays the golden eggs. After all, empires build up out of paper and without armies are delicate enterprises.

My due respect goes for the clever set-up of the R&R global house of cards of finance, where debt and fiat paper are being offered for exchange of the world's real asset.

Never before in history has such an impressive Potemkin village been staged on such scale, and this time not exclusively to fool a Czarina, but to deceive the whole world. Regrettably however for R&R, the inquisitive and open nature of the Internet, for as long as not (yet) harnessed, is going to shed light on dark matters and is bound to bring the house of cards down.

The Money Spine

The main functions attributed by economic theory to money are broadly described as a means of exchange and store of value. But what is neglected is the vital role that money plays as **the structural spine of society**, where everything turns around. Money price-tags, sorts, filters and classifies all goods and services. Whether we like it or not, modern money also classifies all of us individually as well as collectively as per our capacities and potential, accumulated wealth and our value to society. **Money controls society. And he who controls the money-flow, rules. Never before in history has there existed a more ruthless, efficient system to control people, than through modern banking and fiat money.**

Everything and everybody in today's life carries a value, a pricetag, and is subject to the **hierarchy of the money spine**. Be it labor, products, services, information, energy or wealth. Offer and demand regulate the markets, and as such direct production, human activity and society. What is it worth? What is he, or what are they worth? And high up in the money spine hierarchy the wealth accumulated by the elite reigns.

When money has intrinsic value, as in the form of precious metals and is allowed to flow freely, without interference, the money spine works naturally, provides balanced growth, gives equal opportunity and spreads wealth broadly. Industry, agriculture and mining produce, trade provides, and art creates and brings all that the market needs and the public asks for. An independent gold and silver currency gives people their freedom of action.

And all would be well, would not an early Banker have seduced the government into tampering with the free circulation of the gold and silver currencies and diluted the monetary standard by bringing worthless fiat paper into circulation, in parallel, first in competition and finally as substitute for the gold and the silver. Nothing has reduced people's freedom more, nothing has wreaked greater havoc with the natural workings of the Money Spine and nothing has uprooted society more, than the invention and introduction of fiat money.

Put the total wealth of a country together in a basket: its money hoard of gold and silver and everything else that could be turned into money, all of its fixed and movable assets plus its infra-structure, all of which add up to the total value of the common wealth.

For as long as a country's wealth is counted in tangible assets, its finances and economy will be balanced. But start adding fiat paper, created out of thin air, to the basket and decree it legal tender, then the natural balance will be destroyed. Be it the Treasury or the Central Bank, for the USA the Federal Reserve, fiat paper, without giving anything in exchange, automatically and illegally makes its creator co-owner of the basket of the common wealth.

Each time additional fiat paper is issued, wealth is stolen from the people and their freedom is reduced. Each cent of fiat paper money put into circulation, each paper credit extended, transfers wealth from the people to the issuer of fiat paper or fiat credit. Wealth in any form, be it precious metals, goods, enterprise, real estate or whatever.

The same holds true when foreign fiat paper penetrates into other countries. The issuer of the foreign fiat currency in question automatically obtains a claim on the assets of the respective country. (Third-world countries you are warned: beware of dollarization and protect your freedom!)

Instead of complaining so much about inflation, which is but a consequence, anger and protests would better be directed at the source of evil, namely toward the illegal usurpation of wealth through the issue and introduction of fiat money.

As previously stated, everything and everyone today is tagged by and on the money spine. But it has become a spine that is not made up out of solid and honestly working precious metals any more. The gold and silver reserves of the countries, the savings of generations never to return, have been squandered or leased out by either ignorant politicians, or more sinister, by the malevolence of insiders.

Worthless paper promises have usurped the gold's and the silver's place and turned the once solid metal spine of society into a deformed, fragile, vulnerable contraption which no longer promises the needed support in uncertain times.

Fiat paper and credit, and with them the whole modern banking system, have become a rapidly spreading, debilitating parasite, a deadly cancer.

Where are the 'great' economists, academics and Nobel Prize winners, not blind to obvious crime? Those who dare to teach the truth to the people and unmask the perfidy of fiat money and credit banking and their totalitarian grip on society? Who dares to talk about economic fine-tuning and structural adjustments when the whole financial system the world turns around, is rotten to the core and tottering on the borders of the abyss?

Whereas originally the money spine used to adjust and adapt automatically to economic activity, today, with gold and the silver gone, the money spine, and with it our whole social order, has become subjected to the haphazard issue and manipulation of fiat money and credit by a banking system controlled by an anonymous financial elite, who's power has spread to every corner of the world.

Who raped Russia, the Argentine and the underdeveloped world? Who pulled the rug out from under Japan in the eighties? Who precipitated the Asian crisis and the Tequila crisis? Who is manipulating the markets, from the currency to the bond, to stock and commodity markets and in particular the gold and the silver markets? Who instigates wars in order to keep control over oil? Who pushes the dollar down the throat of the world? The same ones that control New York's major financial institutions and the FED! The same ones that control the IMF, the BIS, the World Bank and the World Trade Organization!

Money, not armies rules today. And whoever rules and holds the money, rules the world.

It has been said that Washington has never had a foreign policy, New York on the other hand clearly shows consistent long term planning and policy patterns:

 Making the dollar the world's exclusive currency, by pushing the dollar down the world's throat, not tolerating what ever competition, and ruling-through debt enslavement at home as well as abroad.

Only a financial power centre like New York could have pursued and coordinated, for over more than half a century, the policies needed to execute the dollar strategy so successfully. Politically-divided Washington could never have achieved such.

For people, far from the heart of finance, New York's stellar concentration of financial power must seem far fetched, but for the initiated it is not only feasible, but even plausible, that a small inner circle could have succeeded in dominating the world's finances under the cloak of deceit and anonymity, through, what I call, financial spider- webbing.

Financial Spider-Webbing

The spread and might of financial spider-webbing in anonymity is little known to the general public, never talked about in the media, and hardly taught at University, as discussion of such would run head-on against the interests of the invisible owners of the media or trusts sponsoring the honorable institutions of learning.

It is never the people in the lime-light that you hear of or read about in the media that pull the effective strings. It is not the great public figures or so called intellectuals one reads about, neither are they the salaried employees, or even when secretaris or ministers of State, the chairman of the Central Bank or even the President of a country, but it is the silent powers behind the scenes, one hardly ever hears or reads about, that make or break the world.

Already in the early days of my independent career, through certain lucky circumstances, I had the privilege to meet and observe top people in industry, banking and commerce at close range. I had the opportunity to learn about the way business empires are managed by way of financial spider-webbing. And instead of depending on reading general news and publications, that everybody has access to, I was in the favourable position of occasionally having first hand access to information on what was going on in 'higher finance.'

Spider-webbing is the art of controlling the largest financial empire with the most effective wealth available. In this game, it is not the riches in themselves, but the control and power they provide, that counts. Many are the variations of the game, but let me mention some basics:

- The first rule is to make the wealth unassailable through tax exempt foundations and/or off-shore trusts.
- Secondly, to make any concentration of wealth invisible,

- Thirdly to exercise tight personal management and control, with a minimum of insiders and front-men, restricted to partial knowledge only.
- Control of the wealth is done through secure leverage.

For instance:

A certain percentage of shares control a tax-exempt Foundation A. This Foundation A in turn has the control of one or more trusts, banks, companies or whatever at level B, also through controlling share holdings. Level B in turn controls level C investments. And so on, ad infinitum. There are tricks like cross-share-holdings to be able to reduce the amount of shares needed for control. It often happens that one conglomerate is controlled by the combined votes of a number of different holdings at levels B, C or D, where the individual managers might not even suspect that overall control of their respective companies rests with one share holder at the top. Even the managers might not even know one another.

Other ways to get leveraged control is through ownership of 'Trust and Fund Management Companies' which have the voting rights of the shares the Trusts and Funds themselves are invested in. There are many other ways and means to exercise control through leverage, like for instance through mergers and take-overs, or through conditions annexed to loans. What is mentioned here in an abbreviated way, I hope, will suffice to make the point.

My advice is to never to look at companies on their own, how mighty they may seem, but rather ask yourself: to which or to who's stable could they belong? Connections might be discovered through financial relationships and transactions, statements, double directorships, gatherings or even office locations, and so on.

-The most important rule is, that the 'master spider' himself keeps anonymity and stays out of the public eye, at least as far as his business dealings are concerned. As once in the public eye, his very actions are prone to unmasking his empire. Never appear anywhere as the master, take but a back-seat in anonymity. Never show up on the lists of the richest. Appear as a philanthropist.

A good example of what has been done by spider-webbing is in a country with over 50 million inhabitants where over 75% of enterprise and banking is controlled by one conglomerate only: South Africa, controlled by the Anglo-de Beers Empire under the Oppenheimers. Even the Reserve Bank and the Rand are managed by Anglo-de Beers. Nothing has changed there since apartheid ended. Still the same owners, still the same control, except that the Oppenheimers do not have to worry any longer about interference by the Boers. Where it really Ernest and Harry Oppenheimer that built the Anglo de Beers Empire on their own account or were they only front-men after-all? And did Cecil Rhodes pioneer independently, or did he have a sponsor too?

Therefore please do consider if it would be too far fetched, that also other countries, including the USA, might be entangled in opaque, wide-spread spider-webbing? And that spider webbing and its ramifications could have penetrated American corporate life much deeper than known to the public?

Could we even go as far as to suspect that spider webbing might have become so centralized and concentrated, that the greater part of US banking and enterprise could now be under the control of just a very small inner circle, dominated by one solitary clever man?

Some twenty odd years ago, I had the unique opportunity to observe that same man in the mezzanine of the Buenos Aires Plaza Hotel in the middle of a selected circle of about 15 people. Coming out of a corridor, they were falling over one another in trying to keep up with their Master, who with goose steps Mussolini would have been proud of, marched past where my wife and I were sipping tea with nobody else around.

Once, I stood but 20 yards away from, then vice-president, Nixon, when demonstrators threw eggs and tomatoes at him in front of the Hotel Bolivar in Lima, Peru. And once I had the opportunity to watch Gorbachev as the guest of honor, at the table next to us, when having luncheon with Harry Schultz in Montreux, Switzerland. I have observed many top people in my life, but never have I met anybody of the calibre of David Rockefeller and never have I

experienced a man radiating greater power.

David Rockefeller was not just a lieutenant of the Commission on Foreign Relations. He was the CFR's chairman from 1970 till 1985. And as William Jaspers writes: 'every trail of Washington's policies leads to the CFR'.

David Rockefeller was also the founder of the Trilateral Commission. When Nestor Kirchner recently visited the United States, the electronic pages of the first Argentine news-paper, 'la Nacion', did not even mention Kirchner meeting Bush, but a full account plus photos was carried of Kirchner sitting for luncheon between Rockefeller and the president of Citigroup, William Rhodes. It was of the greatest importance for Rockefeller not to have the Argentine declare open default so as not to start a world-wide chain reaction of defaults. The Master himself had to be present.

For every empire, in order to foster its policies and at the same time cover manipulations and deceit, info-filtering and public relations are a must. For that reason the ownership and control of the media and the institutions of learning are a must for successful financial spider webbing.

The times are gone when news filtered through the community relative to the importance people gave it.

Since media ownership has become concentrated and controlled, news is being filtered as directed from the top, and subjected to censure, to be finally polished with propaganda and indoctrination. Journalists and authors, who do not conform to directives will not see their articles or personal opinions published. So too will teachers and lecturers be recruited for their ideologies and fidelities by the boards of the institutions of learning, controlled from above.

Journalists promoting the interests of the elite get Pulitzer prizes. Scientists formulating derivative risk as acceptable investment instruments get the Nobel prizes. So ask yourselves: would Maynard Keynes have been invited to Bretton Woods if his monetary ideas had been contrarian to the interests of the bankers? No sir! Keynes' theories were exactly what the international bankers wanted In order to launch their world-wide credit expansion plans.

Most intellectuals are living with the illusion, that it is their writings and efforts that are forging the future of mankind. What delusion! Yes, theories and ideas have spread but hardly ever the way intended. Stalin used the mantle of communism for his dictatorship. Hitler used the empty slogan of National Socialism. Bankers talk capitalism, monetary discipline and free enterprise, while supporting controls, socialism and spending. Forget about all the—'isms' and look at what really makes the world go round. It are the silent powers behind the scenes, one hardly ever hears of. It is the elite that decide, filter and select what is to be propagated in accordance with its plans.

I strongly recommend Ferdinand Lundberg's writings about who owns whom in America, especially where he delves into the media ownership. One of his last publications "The Rich and the Super Rich" was published in 1967, never to be reprinted or, in all probability, allowed to be reprinted! Lundberg leaves no doubt about financial spider webbing in the USA and the persons and families involved.

However, time has not stood still and since Lundberg's publications some landslide changes in the world's balance of power have taken place and capital has become super- concentrated in only a few hands.

Changes have to be taken into account when assessing the present.

- -Firstly, after and in consequence of World War II, the global balance of power has shifted decisively from Europe to the USA.
- -Secondly, capital concentration at the top has proceeded rapidly since Lundberg and has reached dazzling new heights. Today, only trillions count.
- -Thirdly, the banks' ever accelerating growth rate relative to enterprise and businesses has made the banker king, and the entrepreneur but a servant.

But who are these Bankers, or Banker, with their financial superempires, dominating America? Europe after the Second World War was 'kaput'. Not only were the conquered, but so were the victors, like England, inclusive its bankers. After WWII, the Bank of England was flat-out broke. In England and on the continent financial austerity reigned. No Maynard Keynes policies were applied in post-war Europe! Pennypinching was the recipe. After the post-war mega power-shift, any stories about the Rothschilds or the Bank of England still holding much sway in the US FED, should be discounted. After the Second World War New York's Bankers were quite capable of taking care of their own FED and taking on the world!

It was New York, that rolled out the red carpet for Maynard Keynes in Bretton Woods. The same New York that thrives on paper and credit creation and does not care the hell about financial discipline. Bretton Woods was the authentication of the great post-war power shift. It heralded the beginning of global American financial expansionism. Bretton Woods brought the IMF and the World Bank, both controlled by New York, to serve as launch pads for the post war American dollar and its world-wide expansion.

Once the Second World War was over, New York, launched its worldwide dollar offensive. It is New York's financial aggressiveness
which brought the wrath of the world on to America. New York's
dollar imperialism has wrongly become associated with America
as a whole. The outside world does not realise, that the American
people themselves are likewise burdened with a heavy debt yoke
imposed by the same bankers, and that the American people have
no idea about the harm caused overseas by the greediness of the
American Banks.

American preaching of freedom for all, forced Europe to decolonize its overseas territories. And once decolonized, the USA stepped in, with the dollar following. Only the French Franc-zone offered some resistance to the Dollar tide. Where British trade and enterprise had dominated South America with the Pound Sterling up to World War II, in the shortest time, of around 15 years South America changed from Sterling to Dollar territory. And before we knew it the whole world was on a Dollar standard.

That left the New York Banker in control of the world's finances, its markets, the economies and its people, through a system, tighter, more efficient and binding than any dictator could ever have dreamt of, and all that in anonymity! Who was it, that Herbert Hoover called the Master of Deceit? Today we can say, that it is not the clothes of the emperor which are invisible, but it is the Emperor himself, who is invisible.

For me the United States no longer shines as a Democracy. Democracy has long been hi-jacked from the American people. For me the United States has become a Totalitarian Empire based on Fiat and Debt with New York its seat of power and with Washington bought as its obedient servant. The Council for Foreign Relations has become the Emperor's Council with the Banking Establishment its Power of Control. For the ones in doubt, please do read Lundberg's papers on spider-webbing before giving your opinion.

The great question is: for how long can such a suppressive paper empire last? The answer is: only for as long as alternative stores of value can be withheld from the people. And that is the very reason why the outcome of the gold and silver battle is of the utmost importance.

February 25, 2004

The Merchant's Control over the Media

To run his empire and to execute his policies control of the Media is a must for the Merchant of Debt.

Nothing could enlighten this more than the essay below that I published on November 22 2001 on the Internet:

"... I want to bring to your attention a major media operation by "the Merchant of Debt" to advance his financial and business interests in Latin America, I happened to witness in 1952, when living in a, at the time, a still clean and prosperous Peru.

Till around the early fifties, South America was financially and economically Europe orientated. Especially in their relationship with the British, who were all over the continent with their railroads, slaughterhouses, trading companies, mining and oil companies, banks, insurance etc. European immigration brought Europe linked business with it. However, as after World War II Europe had to concentrate all its efforts, scarce resources and financial means to rebuilt its devastated countries at home, South America stayed neglected.

This was the moment of opportunity for American banking and business to step in. America is America, and North America and South America belong together. A reorientation of the USA toward South America was on the cards. A first step was delegating the Klein-Saks Mission to study the local situation and investment possibilities, then to advise back home and finally come up with a practical blue print for the advancement of American business interests in South America. Once done, Klein- Saks stayed on to advise South American governments on how to best implement economic reforms, but ... always with an eye on accommodating US business interests first.

Wherever possible big business will always try to use government and the tax-payers money first, even before thinking about coming up with the needed finance themselves. Thus, the people's attention at home had to be awoken and directed toward the plight of South America. Certain key people in the USA government had to be convinced or bribed, in order to open the government's money faucets and make it available for big business to finance their mega projects planned for South America.

A trip for Vice-President Nixon to South America was approved, first to Venezuela and then on to Peru. In Caracas violent(?) anti-American (organized?) rallies erupted, followed by angry(?) demonstrations in Lima, Peru. The American public had to be convinced that something needed to be done to appease their poor and neglected South American brothers. "The Alianza para el Progresso" was founded, followed later by Kennedy's "Point Four Program". Big Business on the back of the American tax-payer moved on a grand scale into South America.

What ever happened during Nixon's stay in Caracas, I do not know, but of what subsequently happened in Lima, Peru, that, yes, when I happened to be witnessing the protest demonstration against Vice President Nixon on his official visit to Peru, which at the time was making headlines all over the Western Press.

When at around lunch time, I walked from the Plaza de Armas through the centre of Lima to the Plaza San Martin, the big square was practically deserted of people and traffic, with the exception of about fifty odd persons, who had gathered behind a file of thirty mounted police, on guard and facing the main entrance of the Bolivar Hotel where Vice-President Nixon was staying. The very moment I got to the Plaza San Martin - and was no further away than forty feet from the hotel entrance - Nixon and entourage drove up. First came the cars with the press, who instantly got out and took up position with their cameras around the Hotel entrance. Seconds later the limousines with the security officers and Nixon's limousine arrived at the doorsteps of the hotel. The security men quickly surrounded Nixon and bunched him off towards the entrance. Nixon had his coat collar up and his head pulled in. He did not look neither left nor right. Nothing, but nothing had happened as yet. Then, at the most, two tomatoes and three eggs were thrown from the peaceful, silent "crowd" of not more than 50 protesters. And that was exactly where the reporters came in: their cameras ZOOMED in on the demonstrators and Nixon. The mounted police had not moved an inch. The whole affair did not taken more than at the most two minutes. Nixon and entourage slipped away into the hotel. The demonstrators left peacefully for home in the two busses waiting for them on the opposite side of the square, where people there had not even noticed a thing of what had been going on the opposite side of the plaza.

Then came the 'great presentation' at home! T.V. cuts from the centre of the demonstration only, not showing the near emptiness surrounding the demonstrators. Photos of Nixon diving into the hotel ducking one egg and one tomato on the wall beside him. The controlled media presented a totally doctored up and faked picture of the 'incident' to the sheeple! Just as if there had been thousands of angry protesters. For weeks the newspapers in the US hammered away on it! Politicians were kept busy. The whole affair had been neatly staged, set up and presented to fool the sheeple at home! And who do you think had thought it all out? And under the auspices of what banking empire did America move on in big scale into South America?

It happened at the time that natural grass-roots development in South America became replaced with force-fed big finance from the top, that private entrepreneurial capital growth became replaced with credit financing, that the South American debts started to accumulate for ever into infinity. And shanty towns began to sprawl and sprawl. A true case of organized Orwellian disinformation and political manipulation, the kind of which is being repeated again and again today and will be tomorrow. It makes me think about the latest happenings.

And when I now hear that Gavyn Davies, former Goldman Sachs partner, economic advisor to the PM of Great Britain and the chief financial advisor to Chancellor of the Exchequer has been named director of the BBC, London, I cannot but present my condolences to the BBC on the death of a once fine independent information service to which my ears were night after night glued during the last world war. I pray that the Internet is not going to suffer the same fate. November 22 2001."

All these demonstrations and news manipulations of late have nothing to do with conspiracies. But what they do reflect, is **Big Brothers tightening control over the people** on the one side and

on the other side the broad frontline of the building confrontation between the United States against China and Russia.

Demonstrations can be classified into two classes:

A-The ones rising spontaneously born out of anger over authoritarian proceedings, the second

B- Demonstrations organized by governments directly or through their NGO's, political parties or financial Grandies to promote their interests or certain programs.

Spontaneous demonstrations are often infiltrated by rogue groups paid by opponents, the ones in power, to go on the rampage, with the aim to discredit the movement. That is where their Media come in to fake-film the scenes and give their biased comments.

Organized demonstrations for political gains by the ones in power are for instance the color revolutions. One of which was Maidan Square in Kiev, where a few sharpshooters brought-in killed a few of the demonstrators and blame it on the ones in power.

Several color revolutions that were started with setup demonstrations succeeded, but many back-fired.

The planning is always the same: start a little incident, organize a demonstration and bring 'their' Media in.

That is why the Media and their control are of such importance to Big Brother: T.V. channels, Associated Press, Reuters, Times/ Warner-Bros, The Murdoch Press empire, Axel-Springer, France Press, and lately the ongoing fight of control over the Internet.

Control of the 'Media' means business and political power: A good example is: Librairie Hachette, at the time the overall owner and of the communist l' Humanité, France Soir, le Monde and the conservative le Figaro, all together, that finally sold out to Time/Warner-Bros sometime in the 1980-ties.

The Debt Virus

Banking is nothing more than a social *macro-virus*. Just like any normal virus invades and replaces the DNA structure of its individual victim with its own DNA structure, so has the highly contagious banking virus infiltrated society in its entirety and replaced the established national laws, rules, regulations and disciplines with its own DNA, by hook and by crook.

This **social debt virus** brainwashes and takes control of the communal mind and nervous system, corrupts the information flow, undermines morals, ethics and resistance and remolds its victims, the people, to fit into its own DNA programs.

It drowns society in floods of worthless phantom money that washes it clean of all its resources and assets. Slowly and surely the debt virus then penetrates the very heart and soul of society, reducing the people into an amorphous mass and the governments into puppets, both easy to be manipulated. At the end abandoning its victim to rot away once sucked dry and done for.

The banking virus puts the people in a trance: no worries, social security from the cradle to the grave, free tuition, sick leave, medical care, paid holidays, old age pensions, everything secure and insured. Till suddenly, overnight, the people will wake up and all the money to pay for all this will have disappeared, may-be it never even existed at all.

Please do understand that there is no difference in characteristics between a virus which attacks an individual being and the debt-virus that preys on, attacks and enslaves society as a whole.

There is no other way to save humanity than to kill and obliterate this fatal debt virus, whatever it takes, Mr. Draghi!

Debtors March

Ninety-nine, and here we come Here we are to beat the scum, Death the Banks, our marching song All United makes us strong

Here we come to set the score Debts we recognize no more All said debts are just a scam Paying them, we give a damn.

Dimons, Blankfeins and the Geithners All the same, are all just shysters Rockefellers, Rothschildts, Mellons, Bernankes and Greenspan felons

Ninety-nine claims back the Whole Everything of what you stole With your lies and twisted tongue With your cheating all along.

Stock and bond manipulations Precious metal amputations Servants of the God of Greed, Credit-spewing we don't need

All our countries assets, gold On the sly to friends you sold. Basta now! And here we come To settle with the Wall Street scum

H.S.

The Final Hour of Debauchery

The above-quoted essays should suffice and make it abundantly clear to the reader, that the whole present financial system the world is subjugated to, is one big criminal Ponzi-scheme - designed from the outset by Big Brother, the Merchant of Debt.

The Orwellian Society has silently entered through the backdoor, under the cloak of monetary and financial but fake legality and has imposed its iron shackles of monetary and financial controls on society. Not openly but in stealth and anonymity. People are still dreaming that they are free as ever. Not till this day, have people woken up to the servitudes imposed on them. A costly illusion when caught in the Merchant of Debt's spider-web.

Time and again I am amazed that so little has been published on the subject and that only very few of the intelligentsia, economists, social thinkers and politicians perceive the dominant role and absolute power of the Banker in its perversity and the inherent dangers involved for society. Have all been brainwashed?

This cannot end otherwise than in tears. The reign of the Merchant of Debt has totally unhinged society by concentrating all the world's wealth in a few hands only. Killing all grassroots development in the bud, imposing a totalitarian financial dictatorship and forcing its unnatural globalization. Cutting the roots of survival of centuries old nations and chaining them to the Empire of Debt. Divide and rule, make every country dependent on the Merchant, so he can dispose from above in all anonymity as he pleases.

Uprooted, cultures, nations and people make for a restless and unpredictable world. Globalization chains nations into interdependence and could make a local catastrophe grow rapidly into a global tsunami. Nearly all Western Countries are chained by the same basic financial framework designed by the Banker but legalized and sanctioned under pressure by the State, comprising:

- The right ceded to the banks to extend up to 12 times more credit (phantom money creation) than their own capital.
- The right to receive interest compensation on these phantom money loans extended.
- The exclusive right extended to the anonymous, privately owned Reserve Banks, as the sole issuer of the national currency.
- The legalized anonymity of shareholders in corporations.
- Taxing of profits only once, even if their trail might run through several companies,
- The ceding of a 'tax-free status' to certain trusts and foundations, and
- The obligation for anyone finding gold, to sell it to designated institutions.
- The restrictions of the carrying of gold, silver or whatever valuables, locally or over the border.
- 9. ad infinitum

The totally wrong-footed bank and currency legislation and biased taxation introduced on the sly by the State, pressured by the Banks, lie at the root of this evil.

Biased taxation and implanted social obligations by force have killed grass-roots growth and made it impossible for the small to medium sized entrepreneur to grow and maintain independence, enslaving him to the mercy of the Bankers. In short: the present financial structure has broken the backbone of society and has made millions into eternal credit slaves.

Arrogantly ruled from the apex of power Big Brother Merchant has turned the world unstable. A world, where people are but slaves without responsibilities creates amorphous, unpredictable masses.

How will it all end? Will the Merchant's Empire degenerate by itself in the long run and collapse? Will reactionary forces revolt, take over by force, and bring an end to the Bankers' yoke? Or will it all finally end in war and chaos?

This world is rapidly turning from a world of personal freedom and achievement into a grey automated and strictly regulated termite society - a world without honour, dignity and principles.

Dark times and struggle lie ahead for the few still having the guts to defend their individual. livelihood and rights.

It is not a question of socialism, communism, national-socialism or capitalism and the likes. What all of these 'ism's' have in common is that they are out of touch, overreaching, misguided and pursuing fake ideals imposed from the top.

The banks through the governments are indulging in paper-wealth creation and are thriving. The money supply is soaring, credit expansion ballooning and still no inflation insight. The financial world seems to be running in a seemingly orderly manner, and the economies are absorbing all the new moneys and credits in a balanced way. Mr. Greenspan is being praised in the newspapers as the perfect juggler.

Financial experts are daily combing the horizon for any signs of inflation! But how would it be if the experts looked up instead and discovered the bulging credit thunderclouds right overhead? Is it just pedantic shortsightedness of how inflation should be defined? Or are the darkening credit clouds conveniently being left out of the picture? Credit inflation has not yet come down to earth but it is ready to burst and flood the world, hitting hard and unexpectedly. The huge credit pyramid built up by the banking system is like a volcano spewing out hot liquidity in ever greater volume: pouring it out via the funds into the stock markets, bond markets, third world loans, junk and rollover loans, derivatives, undeserved commissions and salaries. Pouring it offshore- billions are leaving the high-tax countries never to return to their home economies, finding their way via the tax haven banks and offshore investment funds and returning again into the same stock and bond markets and monetary assets. Off-shore is unpredictable, vicious and volatile. The chances for more fine-tuning and a soft landing have long since gone. Alice in Wonderland is running behind the events and will soon lose even her psychological power to influence the markets. The bankers money fountains are keeping on flowing. Global credit creation seems to be

out of control and is beating the first six days of creation in Genesis. The stock markets have taken the bite between their teeth.

With the fading of the Rockefeller Empire, the affairs of the United States are no longer as they should be. US policy is not thought through and not well planned any longer. Be it the Iraq war, politics in general, public relations or financial policy, coordination and long term planning are missing. Of late, too many contradicting statements have been made by US government spokesmen, too many people have come to Washington only to leave shortly afterwards. Too many unanswered questions are lingering, especially about the motives for the Iraq war. This raises suspicions in the outside world that all might not be rosy in America.

For the foreigner there can be only one explanation: a lack of leadership in the affairs of the United States. The current uncertainty and the ad hoc actions of the government are evidence of how much influence David Rockefeller must have had till only recently.

With Rockefeller leaving the scene, sixty years of dollar imperialism is drawing to a close and with that the closure of an era in the history of the United States. The US and with it the world, is entering an uncertain, vulnerable and dangerous inter-regnum, till a new leader asserts himself.

The day of financial reckoning is not far off any longer and I am sticking my neck out that not before long, the world will become involved in a fully-fledged monetary crisis. Exactly as what happened in the early days of the Weimar Republic's hyper-inflation, the FED is indulging in frantic monetization of US government debt. Once there is no debt left to monetize, then either a Weimar like inflation could take hold in Dollar-land, or a strictly controlled dollar regime could be imposed, with price and foreign exchange controls, foreign asset and gold and silver requisition, including the obligation for the mines to sell their production to State agencies and so on, all as happened under the Sperr-Mark in Hitler's Germany. It would be left to the outside world to digest the overhang of now worthless dollars in circulation beyond the USA borders.

- Todays economies have become so dependent on banking that without banks the economies would come to a grinding halt.
- So much wealth has been abducted from people and enterprise that, without ever more fiat money creation and bank credits, the economy would be broke.
- So great has the government's dependence on the banking become for its financial needs and fiscal administration that, without banks, governments would collapse.
- The developing world has become dependent on foreign loans to such a degree that, without continually increasing loan facilities, their economies would breakdown.

Banking has become so inter-twined with daily life, that it is impossible to imagine a world without banks. But we had better! Unexpectedly and out of nowhere systemic cracks have made their appearance on the world's financial scene. Wide spread rot, corruption and outright fraud is coming out into the open. Mega businesses and whole countries are defaulting. The halos of integrity of the elite of finance are fading. It is not a question of will the banks and their fiat casino survive, but when will the whole caboodle collapse?

It will be impossible to save the situation by introducing corrective measures. The Merchants of Debt have too many privileges and entitlements. Not over their dead bodies will the Bankers cede them. But that is exactly where it all might end.

Banking has totally uprooted society. Once flourishing enterprises have been bundled into inefficient conglomerates, small grass roots businesses killed, people smothered in debt, family life torn apart, governments inflated out of proportion and the Developing World imprisoned in a debt labyrinth without exit.

It is not only a material question and of reinstating sound money. It is the grave social and psychological damage which has been done to morals and ethics, which has brought cynicism, loss of faith, nihilism and despondency. The heart and soul of society have been destroyed and the people reduced to a manipulated, amorphous mass.

Nothing could describe the tragedy better than an e-mail received from the Developing World in response to my essay "the Wealth Transfer Machine":

"For the last 30 years we have been watching helplessly how nations such as ours, are gradually drowning in the oceans of debts. Not only are we at the mercy of these banks, but all our physical resources including human resources have vanished from our country. Instead we see these resources safely stacked in the developed world, providing benefits to those who already have everything. Our country has become poorer. Such is the plight that you won't find good teachers, good lawyers, good mechanics, good doctors and good engineers in our country. Our pride is gone, our self-esteem is gone and our sovereignty is gone. We are dead. - F.W."

The SE Asia crisis, the WTO and IMF protests, the Tequila Crisis, the Argentinean crisis, the LTCM and the recent Enron scandal are only the early symptoms of where the world is heading. Under the surface the situation is much worse. It is boiling! The churning market and the desperate liquidity creation are proof of it. So fast is the global fiat money system deflating, taking the economies down with it, that without the opposite, ever-accelerating, fiat creation, liquidity would dry up overnight, the financial markets collapse, and daily life grind to a halt.

Dollar monetary inflation or deflation depend solely on Greenspan pumping faster or slower than the economy is shrinking. And as both, the survival of the government and the banks, are dependent on the financial carousel keeping on turning, maximum liquidity and a strong dollar are required. The bets are thus on Greenspan inflating faster. Greenspan's efforts will be to no avail, the rot has advanced too far. History will take its course, correcting painfully all that man planned in evil spirit. History has always seen to it that, when the tide turns, wealth will gravitate from the lofty heights back down to grass roots. And if not returning freely, it will be taken back there by force.

Let the 'big apple' rot. Let the ones responsible hang themselves with their own rope. With pleasure, we will assist them in revealing their blatant lies and crookeries.

What we are presently experiencing, means much more than just a financial crisis. It is even more than a crisis of Western civilization. It is the crisis of human cohabitation on a planet suddenly filled to the brim with people. It is in this light that present and future problems will have to be viewed and solved.

Changes are going to be major and will affect every single aspect of human life. Mankind is suddenly being confronted with the most important question ever since his existence: is humanity going the way of an ant society or is there still a chance for man to live and prosper as an individual? Big Brother Ant has already made his entry. Can we still get rid of him?

Years will pass before the Great Upheaval will have worked itself out. The whole of the twenty-first century or more might be involved. The present developing financial, social and cultural crises are all part of the same Great Upheaval that we are entering. Everything has grown so inter-twined. Single solutions for single problems will not hold on their own. Each single problem should be evaluated and solved in the context of the global changes that are taking place.

The rapid change-over, from an open-planet society, where mankind could expand, to a closed-planet society, where there is no space left for friction-free growth, is calling into question the ongoing validity of the very foundations and concepts on which society has flourished till recently.

Winds of change have opened wide cracks in the once sacrosanct Western political, economic, financial and social systems, heralding the disintegration of the established order.

Rot and decay are already too far advanced to be satisfactorily corrected. Purely corrections will not return us to sanity.

February 26th 2002

The Planned Reset by the Merchants of Debt

April 2007:

With asset and credit bubbles blowing up, financial panic is around the corner. The Central Bankers must be well-aware of the situation. They themselves were the ones that promoted the unlimited fiat and credit creation in the first place. And we can be sure that they must have schemed well in advance of how to proceed when their financial bubbles implode.

Three years ago a first tentative article was published by the World Gold Council about digital gold money. Last November a follow up article was composed by the CFR, the Council for Foreign Relations, and published in leading papers. And most recently the Economist's mid-February lead article was all about digital money and all its merits to replace paper money. All three publications, conditioning and moulding the people into their sinister plans, can be traced back to the same source. One should not underestimate the aims and possible consequences of a publication planted by the world's almighty Banker Brotherhood, the Merchants of Debt.

In the midst of this financial chaos, digital gold, once officially proposed by the designated divine financial experts, will sound for the desperate masses as the saviour, the way out of the chaos. In reality, it will be 'virtual-digital gold' in name only. It will be the financial sales gimmick of the ages. People will go for it and accept it, thinking that after all the fiat paper depreciations and fluctuations, a gold backed digital currency should finally bring stability and certainty. The mention of gold alone already will give the impression of a solid anchor and honesty. In the meantime all the perfidious fiat paper currency in circulation will be declared null and void.

Regrettably however, as before, the bullion will stay on in the vaults of the Central Banks, under the control of the same Banker Brotherhood. It will never be audited and the people will not be allowed to touch it or see it.

And the people will be told that only *one* single electronic card will suffice for every individual to cover all his financial transactions and more. All medical and private data will additionally be added onto the card for their personal *convenience*.

Lies, lies! A single digital card for every individual without an alternative currency in circulation means total Big Brother control, dictatorship and slavery for everybody.

People will not be able to spend one single cent without the Merchant of Debt knowing where it was spent, for what it was spent and how much it amounted to. People will not be able any longer to buy gold, silver or foreign currencies freely, as the Merchant of Debt will keep such unpatriotic electronic transactions blocked on his computers in the national interest, his interest! People will not be able to do anything, travel anywhere or transact anything, without the Merchant's consent. In the same way businesses will be allotted dedicated electronic financial channels for all their transactions. Every action will be registered and controlled.

Sure, one might be allowed to *sell* gold and silver to a precious metal dealer, or foreign paper currency to a currency dealer, but what one will get in return will be fully controllable virtual 'digi-gold' units. And once in the general 'digi-pool' one's 'money' will never be able to escape the pool anymore. And if one would ever try to buy gold or silver, or foreign exchange, then in all probability, one's 'digi-card' will not allow the transaction, under suspicion of money laundering, or even terrorism.

Only by means of *tangible* bullion on the black market at home or in free off-shore financial countries will one still be able to transact freely, to make or receive payments or exchange gold, silver and foreign exchange.

Seen from the Bankers' side: all electronic bullion transactions regardless of using a home or an out-of-the-country digital card, or through the web, will be immediately detected by automatic reporting by the search engines.

Smuggling gold, silver or foreign exchange over borders will in future become very risky, once border detectors are tuned to detect precious metals. And referring to taking foreign currencies over the border: the magnetic strips printed into the bills will show up under electronic scrutiny.

Total people control still far away you might think? It is all here already! Just combine all the data from the banks, credit card companies, identity data, medical and social security, whatever data banks, the FBI and CIA into one card and see he Banks declare all paper money in circulation null and void. Then as they like, Big Brother will either register you as a 'digitonian' or 'declassify' you as socially and financially dead!

Precious metal mining companies active in countries where they are forced to sell all their ounces produced to a government gold bank, will become severely restricted in their profits by the price these government will establish 'arbitrarily'.

Only those mining companies that are established in free countries (and not open to blackmail by also operating in controlled countries) will provide profitable investment opportunities. That is to say: as long as the investor keeps his share investment anonymous and registered off-shore.

In a world going for total people control, only the actual possession of tangible gold and silver and certain off-shore tradeable assets in anonymity, will allow people to keep their freedom of action.

The two big questions remaining are:

will the Banksters succeed in executing their planned great hollow reset and bring the people like sheep under their absolute control - or will people still have the guts to revolt one day against Big Brother, get rid of him and return to living again as dignified human beings?

April 3rd 2007

The Death of Banking

A currency is only as strong as the power behind it and the Banker knows it:

Afghanistan and Iraq are not turning out as expected. America's hold over Latin America is weakening. Venezuela has invited the Chinese to participate in developing its resources. Brazil and Argentina signed deals with China and Russia. So has Iran.

The dollar is weakening and with it, the empire. The world's perception of the Pentagon's almightiness is fading. Its expensive armaments are showing up as obsolete and ineffective against the cheap, simple and easy to acquire military hardware the Afghani and Iraqi resistance and the terrorists are using.

Where in its final days the Roman Empire had no enemies of size, the United States is not as privileged. America does not rule supreme without equals any longer. Under Putin Russia has recoiled strongly, its nuclear strike-capability revamped, its military rejuvenated. A reborn China is flexing its muscles. Now as a nuclear power in its own right and with the world's biggest army. And Iran is a hard nut to crack.

With the whole Eastern Mediterranean turning into a political quagmire, the US super power image is wearing off. Bluff and jawboning are losing their effectiveness. The only political backing left for the dollar resides in America's overwhelming nuclear capability. And it might not be too far-fetched that America, pushed into a corner, could very well be tempted to resort one day to nuclear war.

However, even taking the recent negative developments into consideration, we should not underestimate the still formidable strength of the New York Banker and his dollar. The greater part of the world's reserves is in dollars. The majority of settlements at the IMF, BIS and World Bank are still cleared on a dollar basis. Nearly all the world's commodities are traded in dollars, from oil to minerals and metals, to soft commodities, not forgetting the gold and the silver!

Currency and interest arbitrage are done on a dollar base. Most international contracts are dollar based. The days of contracts underwritten by gold are long gone. All the world's dollar transactions are passing through New York!

Then there are the New York investment markets where besides the US shares and bonds many foreign papers are likewise quoted and traded. It gives New York an unique insight and control of the world's finances, through its transfer and settlement facilities, arbitrage, investment banking, forward trading, shorting, options, risk covering and the various kinds of derivatives. New York still controls it all.

One ancient Greek mathematician once said: give me a long and strong enough lever and I will move the Universe. So today New York says: give me a long enough line of *derivatives* and I will move the world's finances and markets at will. But all this will only work for as long as America itself is still viewed as strong, and for as long as the bluff still works and nobody asks for the 'beef'.

But New York is no longer in absolute control. Russia, China, Europe and Japan, each of them, now also have a grip on the lever. All trying to pull the lever in their direction, secure their own interests and make sure that they will get their share of the quickly dwindling treasures of the world, that the exploding world population craves for. They have all pulled their vital interests in finance, energy, raw materials and logistics together on macro-scale.

Currencies, metals like copper, wheat, oil, interest rates, gold, have all become interrelated under their respective geo-political central commands. The world has become a full-house running rapidly out of resources and the main players are taking measures for their ultimate survival. Each player is holding his cards close to his chest.

Power politics on the highest level and polarization have become the name of the game. No more single players in finance, industry, business, or commerce, no more raw materials, oil, metals and minerals or soft commodities moving on their own account, but all integrated with global power interests making and breaking markets through financial directives and manipulation.

Today's markets have lost their natural offer-and-demand patterns and are but governed by integrated macro-political interests. Forget about graphs and statistics. Forget about daily movements, averages and trends. Rather look at the political developments and events.

But be careful:

The Merchant of Debt is still alive and planning! His Great Reset has been planned since early days!

Back to Grass-Roots

What we are now experiencing is much more than just a financial crisis. It is even more than a crisis of Western civilization. It is the crisis of human cohabitation on a planet suddenly filled to the brim with people. It is in this light that present and future problems will have to be viewed and solved.

Changes are going to be major and are going to affect every single aspect of human life. Mankind is suddenly being confronted with the most important question ever since his existence:

Is humanity going the way of an ant society or is there still a chance for man to live and prosper as an individual?

Big Brother Ant has already made his entry. Can we still get rid of him?

Many years will pass before the 'Great Upheaval' will have worked itself out. The whole of the twenty-first century or more, might be involved. The financial, the social and the cultural crises are all part of the same Great Upheaval we are entering. Everything has grown inter-twined. Single solutions for single problems will not hold on their own. Each single problem will have to be evaluated and solved in the context of the global changes taking place.

The rapid change-over, from an open-planet society, where mankind could expand, to a closed-planet society, where there is no space left for friction-free growth, is calling into question the ongoing validity of the very foundations and concepts on which society has flourished till recently.

Winds of change have opened wide cracks in the once sacrosanct Western political, economic, financial and social systems, heralding the disintegration of the established order.

Rot and decay are already too far advanced to be satisfactorily corrected. The demise of Western Civilization will be a painful and drawn out process. Pure corrections will not return us to financial and social sanity. It needs a clean, new beginning from zero, a fresh sheet in the history of mankind, the sooner the better, and that is what this essay is all about. All I hope is that after the global readjustments, we will still be there as human beings and not have changed into an ant society!

To get off to a clean start the first thing to do will be to put all the vagaries of the floating, drifting and constantly shifting fiat currencies behind us and resurrect the proven solid anchors of sound money, the incorruptible gold and silver, the natural blood of society, where everything and everybody can relate to.

I do not envisage the recreation of just a gold or silver *standard*, but of the tangible gold and silver proper, circulating naturally and independently, side by side as money, free from governmental or institutional interference. There will have to be rules for the game however.

To function properly, free and independent, gold and silver will have to be part of a system based on an ideology, in the same way that the dollar is still part of the American financial and political system and the euro still part of the European Union.

Currencies only work when linked to rules, regulations, laws and the support of the people. If a purely gold and or silver standard was resurrected inside the present American, European or Yen framework, then the gold and the silver would soon become a prisoner of politics and greed again. We need to get away from political interference.

The Internet and Blockchain might be a solution, if it were not for all the hackers that till today still managed to crack whatever cyber system they want to. For a currency to be successful it must be guaranteed to be free from cheating, corruption and manipulation. This entails keeping the currency, its financial flow and accompanying markets, as simple, as automatic and as transparent as possible. Seeing to it that no single entity can take control of the system and that there is no danger of concentration of capital, no leveraging, pyramiding, or spider webbing.

Money should circulate *passively*, and *auxiliary* to economic needs. Money should always be a servant *and facilitator* to the economy and never the other way around, as has been the fatal mistake of the last two centuries.

Neither should there ever be interference with its valuation. Free markets should take care of that. The consistency of the value of money is the anchor where everything turns around. The moment value is tampered and interfered with, everything else will start drifting.

The threat of pyramidal concentration of capital will become a thing of the past, simply by abolishing anonymity, financial networking and by prohibiting companies to take participation in other companies.

More people are today enslaved in chains of debt than ever before in chains of iron. Thus, all usury either in the form of loans or credit and payment of interest, thereon must be totally abolished.

Once usury and loans are a thing of the past, all short- and long-term financial needs, shall in future be covered exclusively by issue of share certificates with equal rights for all participants, and no longer with preferential treatment for loan sharks over share-holders.

Usury makes debts and debts makes slaves. And to correct the over 200 years of financial exploitation a reset on a global scale must rescind without compensation on all outstanding private and public debt and its accompanying interest obligations.

Without any compensation, due to the Merchant's financial empire being one great criminal set-up from the out-set.

In short:

People should be free again and nobody should owe anybody anything anymore. Like physical slavery was abolished so should financial slavery with the stroke of the pen.

Misled

Today, misled by multitudes of hollow voices Man errs around, confused and lost. Estranged from Mother-Life. Not knowing anymore to whom and where to listen.

Not seeing any longer, that he is part of all. Gone wild, berserk, destroying in his folly The Web of Life which Nature spun around our globe So delicate, so finely woven ...

Man does not need the "in-betweens",
Who interpose themselves between the Truth and Man,
By trying to explain the heavenly design
And in the process utterly distorting,
By putting fear in peoples mind
Where trust and harmony should reign.

H.S.

Enough is Enough.

The fraud should be called out and the perpetrators of the crime brought to justice. Never to be given another chance to impose new scams. Like their 'Digi-Gold' scam currently on the drawing board of total people-control by means of Orwellian plastic-cards, however for the bankers all the world's gold and silver in their vaults.

Re-instating full or fractional gold-standards, or any other similar system, will never have a chance to succeed, for as long as the system is based on fraud and the criminals remain in charge.

To clear up the mess, we have to get to the heart of the matter by exposing the basic fraudulency of paper money and banking and expose the 'Banksters' in the lime-light.

Contrary to what people are made to believe, we can do without phantom money and banks with the eventual exception of money transfers and safekeeping services.

What the world does need is **honest money** that nobody can fool around with. **People's money: Gold and silver**. Hard assets that can be standardized and checked electronically at public facilities for purity and weight.

All the robber barons should be put behind bars. The Central Banks, the IMF and the BIS abolished. All banks and financial institutions expropriated. All assets stolen over the years recuperated and confiscated and either returned to their rightful owners or the proceeds re-directed into public trusts to cover society's expenses for many years to come to the benefit of the tax-payer.

Financial laws should be re-written and financial crime made part of common crime. All debts should be cancelled and **debt declared illegal**. Just like **physical slavery was abolished**, so should debt **slavery**. Opportunity and temptation to commit financial crime should be reduced to a minimum. Transparency should be brought into the affairs of man. **Bearer shares should be abolished** and only shares on individual names be allowed and legal. *Then* the world will see who holds the ultimate reigns of power! Markets should be transparent and freely accessible on the web. Short selling, options, futures, and derivatives should be abolished.

Should be, should be ... that all sounds great, but regrettably that is not the way reality works. The Merchant of Debt will ruthlessly proceed in doing everything in his power to prolong his sleazy game: - taking all paper currency out of circulation and implanting 'Digi Gold' as mentioned above, - splitting currencies into external and internal usage, - implanting price controls, - imposing import, export and travel restrictions, - prohibiting the transfer, transport and ownership of gold and silver, - imposing rationing of scarce items and so on.

And the Merchant will see to it that there won't be much money left for Social Security, Pensions, Medicare and Annuities. He will rob them dry. Leave it up to the Merchant of Debt for bonds to become worthless and stocks to hit rock bottom. He will see to it that the people will have no assets and recourses left. That will be His way to ensure that all the people of the earth will become totally dependent and enslaved to Him.

Even if national governments and politicians would succeed in taking over and pushing the Merchant of Debt aside and nationalize the banks, they will likewise be seduced into proceeding along the same lines as the Merchant before them.

Alas, the masses have become brainless sheep, hooked to and (mis) guided by the Master's control of the Media and electronic spider-webbing. The masses are too indoctrinated, beaten down, and will not dare to do anything that would risk their false feelings of security and the little comfort that is left to them.

Only if people would learn to think again for themselves and have the guts left, only then might there still be some hope for the future of humanity as individuals.

Grown from grass-roots and private entrepreneurship that brought on a blossoming and blooming culture, greater than the world has ever seen, Western Civilization has committed suicide by complacency and by letting itself be lured into the trap of a monetary system that is fraudulent and rotten to the core.

Western downturn will be fast, much faster than what happened to former civilizations. With a fraudulent monetary structure on which everything depends that is in the process of rotting away, civilization has not much left to hang on to.

Digital money can disappear with a stroke of a finger on the Banksters computers and paper money burns quickly. In the good old times the process of clipping the coins dragged out a bit longer.

Only those countries that manage to rid themselves timely of the debt cancer might still have a chance to survive.

If one wishes to have an understanding of how far the debt cancer in one's country has spread, then just count the number of banks in your neighborhood!

Besides what happens in the West: if Russia and China stick to the same platform of monetary fraud, their recently acquired prosperity won't last for long either.

Be prepared for rapidly evolving developments. The world is nervous, agitated. Anything unexpected might happen. The upheaval in the world of finances will soon pass on to the world of economics and that against the background of ever-growing political tension and strife.

Financial Imperialism in crisis combined with the ongoing war for the world's dwindling resources might any day turn into real warfare on a global scale. Finance is healthy when the money belongs to the people. Any permission given to the Banker to issue monetary paper or forms of creditadditional to the people's basket is an authorization to steal, and should therefore be stamped unconstitutional.

Growth should be solely financed out of in-house natural profit. No more growth and artificial profit financed by third-party loan-shark loans! Debt and credit laundering should be punishable by law. The belief that economies need monetary infusion and expansion to grow is a complete misconception.

It is not the case of one specific evil elite Cabal conspiring to dominate all the people of the world. They fight between one another anyhow.

Every one of today's troubles, may they be financial, economic, social, political or whatever, can be brought back to one single source, the destruction of money, the blood of society, by the hungry Fiat Debt Virus, planted by the Rothschilds.

By destroying the intrinsic value of money, the gold and the silver, the anchor of stability where nobody can fool around with, manipulation, speculation, inflation and uncertainty have taken over the world.

Markets, financial and general, governments, media, political parties and universities, have all become corrupted by overflowing cascades of worthless fiat currencies and greed.

And I repeat: Every evil of to-day can be brought back to the corruption of money.

Resentment and Anger

All socialistic promises of security from the cradle to the grave peddled by the sly politicians are rapidly disappearing in front of our eyes into black holes.

No money left in pension funds and medical aid. No more money for the maintenance of infra structure. No more job security and millions out of work.

The world-wide outstanding interest due on ever increasing debt is skyrocketing.

The unfulfilled election promises, the corruption and programmes only in the interest of the elites and not in the interests of the country and people have emptied the kitty.

Are people now finally learning that the present order cannot be trusted any longer and that every man will again have to fend for himself as of old?

World-wide there is an undertone of resentment and anger building against the financial and social mismanagement and injustices. Once people realize they have been cheated, robbed and grossly been taken advantage of, are they going to take it lying down? Definitely NOT!

When whole populations are driven away from their birthplace by ethnic cleansing, the world speaks of crimes against humanity. When millions are slaving daily to pay tribute to the Banker, for loans created out of thin air, which costs the Banker next to nothing, and millions are in jeopardy of losing their possessions and livelihood through unscrupulous financial manipulations and dubious practices, is that not the equivalent of financial crimes against humanity?

Only if the world returns to un-corruptible money, gold and silver, and the present opaque banking system with its phantom paper money will be radically eliminated, and all forms of debt will be made punishable by law,

Only if the financial concentration at the top will have been cut down and its assets reverted to the benefit of grass-root development,

Only when all conglomerates, corporations, financial cartels and multi-nationals will have died,

Only when the rogue super-powers will have disintegrated through internal mismanagement or have been split up by force into a manifold of smaller local and regional cantons, united in a global league, ensuring a smoother ride for the world into the future,

Only if the parasitic bureaucracy will have been cut down to size,

Only if all the biased laws will have been thoroughly rewritten,

Only if the people will have accepted responsibility for their own deeds and have learned to think again for themselves and all the sugar-coated corrupt Social Security, Medicare, or whatever privileges introduced by the State will have been revoked,

Only if all markets will be absolutely free and transparent again and share-holdings will be on name only,

Only then might humanity still stand a chance of survival.

The measures here described might seem too utopian and radical, but they are the only way out of the mess the world has gotten itself in.

Grass-Roots Revolution

Revolution: by getting rid of the present parasitic financial and banking system and cleaning up the mess they have made, unmasking the Cabal and their criminal spider-webbing behind the scenes and bringing them to justice.

Revolution: by redesigning from scratch the whole of the world's financial, economic and social relationships based on human dignity and the rules and laws of Nature.

Revolution: by cutting up the super-powers and national states, replacing them with small local and regional entities with their own people-empowered governments.

Revolution: by getting rid of the present useless political parties that only look after their own interests and replacing them with parties that will *defend interests* at *local level* and not promise some far-fetched wonderland utopias.

It is not just a matter of taking just corrective measures to rebalance the gone-haywire financial and social order. With financial overdrive in high gear, the globalized economies are heading the wrong way: right into the abyss.

The monetary deluge has destabilized our planet earth to such extend, that today already, at a far too early stage of human life on earth, the extraction, distribution and logistics of our planet's raw materials and resources, needed on an ongoing rate for sustainable growth, are seizing up and are pushing mankind toward eternal confrontation and war.

Would development have been slower, more solid and smoother and proceeded in a sustainable rhythm, then the world would not find itself in such a precarious situation as at present.

We are witnessing a struggle for survival, of life and death, on our little planet earth, where open spaces have vanished and available resources have reached their limits.

The present world order only serves to concentrate capital and power to the exclusive benefit of a few dug-in omni-potent top dogs and that is not the way humanity will have any chance of survival. It is not so much a question of a 'once and for all' redistribution of land and wealth. It is of absolute necessity to redesign up from scratch, on natural foundations, basic laws and social structures whereupon society should rest.

On the social front I envisage thousands of independent local power centers springing up, that join up into regional alliances. Each one containing not more than a few million inhabitants. Each with its own constitution and laws written by its residents in their local interest and guided by the rules of Nature.

Such manifolds of focused small power centers will provide for a far safer and smoother ride into the future for humanity than being at the whim of colliding super-power politics.

The Slaying of the Merchant of Debt

Let us begin with removing the main obstacles to a healthy world: the foul deeds of the Merchant of Debt. His financial institutions, corporations, the NGOs, his control over the political parties, the special government institutions, the media, the defence industries, the institutions of learning, the pharma industry, the think-tanks and the likes.

As there is not a chance in a million, that the old world- order would be willing let alone be able to reform itself.

We have to do it!

But before going for his jugular directly, we better first immobilize the Merchant of Debt by taking his prime source of income, his usury portfolio of fiat money away from him. Or at least freeze it temporarily, so he will be cut off from any further mischief-making, till his laws and rules will have been rescinded and replaced by honourable laws.

Usury:

In the same way that physical slavery was abolished over a hundred years ago, so should debt slavery be abolished today!

Declare all debts-due outstanding and the interest thereupon world-wide as null and void at the stroke of the pen. In short, decree a world-wide prohibition of usury, same as was done with physical slavery in 1865. These far-reaching proclamations must be submitted to the United Nations and at the same time to all the world parliaments. I do not think that any politician will dare to oppose it and risk the wrath of the people.

If the present political powers would try to dissect, delay or even nullify the proposal, the people would be fully justified to force a plebiscite with local and regional support, bypassing the old, bought national governments or even start a general uprising against the tyrants.

The prohibition of usury shall include:

The prohibition of creation and circulation of fiat money.

Prohibiting the issue of bonds, as being debt certificates.

Decraying all loans and interest payments as illegal,

Prohibiting the use of credit cards, with only debit cards based on intrinsic money staying legal.

After first having cut the Merchant of Deb from his sources of income, the next step will be:

The Abolition of Anonymity:

By stripping the Merchant naked of his anonymity, by taking him into the lime-light, will we know the full picture of who has stolen our assets and freedom and enslaved us. Only by stripping him naked, only then will we be able to slay the Merchant of Debt, only then shall we regain our lives as free and dignified human beings.

Anonymity is the Merchants weak underbelly, where he is most vulnerable. And there is where we shall attack him.

Just like he has stripped us of our privacy, and has put us in his chains of debt, biased and designed to his advantage and our detriment, that he got on the sly legalised by his bought and subservient governments,

And so will it now by our turn to take up herewith our reciprocal right and strip the Merchant naked.

Starting with a decree that:

Share ownership in whatever corporation to be restricted to shares in personal name only. All bearer shares to be declared null and void.

The use of strawmen (dummies) will be considered criminal and will be judged accordingly.

This holds that in future all companies and organizations consisting of members and ruled by decision making by vote, will not to be allowed to hold shares or participations in other companies or organizations. This includes financial institutions, Banks, Funds, Trusts, beneficiary or not, NGOs, the Medias and political parties.

This rule should bring an end to anonymous net-working!

An interim decree needed, is that the old rule of - 'taxation is limited to the *source* of income' – has to be replaced by the revised rule that - 'taxation shall be levelled over the whole interconnecting chain of holdings'-.

All special privileges and tax-free status for whatever companies, organizations and trusts, beneficiary or not, shall be revoked.

All companies, trust and the like, shall be obliged to publish all their share-holders' and beneficiary's names on a continuous basis.

All participation and membership in NGO's, think-tanks, government commissions, political parties and the like, plus all their sources of finance, should be regularly published, and at all times, be open to public scrutiny.

It should be well understood that in future whatever finance needed by enterprise or individuals must either be derived from in-house profits or by the emission of additional shares-on-personal name. Financing by bond emission, be it private, commercial or government will from now on be illegal.

After having unmasked him and his financial spider-nets, it will become clear and obvious that from the outset the Merchant of Debt's whole scheme was already designed as a criminal set-up. Thus, the people have the full right to confiscate his mal-obtained assets and bring the Master himself and his cohorts to justice.

The Banks:

Abolish and **Expropriate** all the Central Banks, the IMF, BIS, World Bank, all international financial institutions and in general all Banks and their associated institutions.

All their assets to be deposited and frozen in Trusts, that are under the control of the referent claimant local and regional powers, for later local and regional redistribution.

Under no circumstances should any confiscation be allowed to flow back to the old national governments.

Revoke all current financial and banking legislation.

Justice:

Put financial crime under criminal law.

Charge the Bankers and specifically the Central Bankers with high treason for:

Not acting in the interest of the people and country,

Misinforming government and people about their actions, Speculating with the peoples and countries reserves for its own and its shareholders' benefit,

Creating money out of nothing via Treasury Bonds and Retro purchases.

Squandering the country's gold and silver reserves, And for refusing to have its books audited.

Accusing the Banks in general of:

Phantom money and credit creation,
Charging interest there-upon,
Acquiring assets with phantom money and credit,
Seducing people inclusive of minors to go into debt,
Applying double usury by charging compounded interest,
Unnecessarily delaying money transfers and
Manipulating the markets, ad infinitum!

Cleaning up

After having gotten rid of the Merchant there will be a lot of cleaning up to do. The Merchant's empire of financial usurpation has caused an immeasurable damage to human society, that will have to be repaired or replaced.

With the collapse of the Merchant's financial spider network of conglomerates, banking cartels, trusts and his control of the markets, much of the damage done will hopefully auto-correct itself, but besides these there will still remain plenty more to be cleaned out.

The Media:

No Media company or group will in future be allowed to hold a participation or a say in another Media group or company. Membership/participation in the Media will be restricted to personal name only and must be open and published.

All financial contributions, donations and participations in a Media group or company must be open to the public to see.

All publications will have to guarantee the truthfulness of content and mention their sources, signed by both author and editor.

Each publication should leave space for content comment. General opinions should be published separately.

No webspace-providing company should have the right to refuse opinions that diverge from its own convictions.

Markets:

Markets must again be made free, accessible and transparent on the web for everybody to see and follow.

All derivative, short selling, options, futures and especially Algo -HFT trading to be prohibited. Down payments and payment in steps only to be allowed when it can be established which part still belongs to the seller and which to the new owner.

Whatever transactions in real estate, movables or services are done, it will have to be either rent or buy.

Real Estate:

Long term home, business and enterprise premises ownership should be returned without compensation, if having been occupied for an established time period. Farmland ownership must return free of compensation to the one who actually works the land.

Farmland rental to be prohibited.

In General:

Property assets that were fraudulently acquired with phantom credit and usury to be returned to their formal owners, be it private or counties, free of compensation.

Government, Political Parties and People:

The present disconnect between people and government cannot be restored. It is not the fault of the people, it is the governments that are floating further and further away from reality and people. With their phantom ideas of globalism they have totally cut the individual and his family off from having any voice left in deciding their own future.

By cheating, lying and ultimate fraud, by stealing from one source and by promising utopias to the electorate, the political parties have made a complete farce of what was once was a democracy.

Be it the conservatives who are part of the financial establishment, be it the socialists robbing the productive wealth entrepreneurs with disproportional taxation, passing the loot on to their voters and thereby setting the employed up against the very hand that feeds them, or be it the opportunistic liberals hanging in between the conservatives and socialists, or the communists where a government from top is already included from the outset: All the parties as soon as elected forget about their election promises and return to pursuing purely their own and the party's interest. Just like in Europe, it is the same in the USA. In the United States there is no democracy left for the democrats and no republic left for the republicans.

The political parties have grown just as parasitic and bloodsucking on society as the governments and as the banking establishment. After all, all of them are children of the Merchant!

The power of local governance must return to the hands of the people, where local laws and decrees will override the ones originating from a higher level.

Examples of what should be decided with the power to execute at local and regional level:

- Introduction and legislation of local laws,
- Regional elections: type, frequency and participation,
- Taxation: type, collection and application of proceeds
- Share to be passed on to an eventual federal authority,
- Police recruitment, task and duties,
- The power to restrict any federal law or decree locally.

Thereby it is suggested that people living in regional communities should not have a direct vote in any sort of higher federal elections or decision making, but should leave it to their trusted and familiar locally-elected representatives, to represent their interests.

I wish to open your eyes, that all that the government spends, has to come from somewhere and someone and that someone is you! And the lesson from history is that all that the bloated, corrupt and inefficient government touches, does costs many times more than it would cost if you yourself would do it!

It means that we had better get rid of big opaque governments and go for transparent and small local governments, the sooner the better. Like the foregoing chapters have shown how to get rid of the Banking virus through bringing the Bankers into the limelight, the same way shall the spendthrift politicians be brought into the limelight and get kicked out.

Banking and politics have totally corrupted society. It should be made clear to the ordinary citizen, that all banking 'facilities' and all the political grand-standing with empty promises do cost society much more in corruption and mismanagement than what would have gone to the benefit of each member of society without them.

Why is it that a hundred years ago only one member of a family was able to sustain the whole family with a wife and many children? Whereas today both husband and wife have to work from morning till evening to enjoy only one, maybe two children?

Throw all these hollow parties and their politicking out of the window, from the tenth floor at the least and **start again from the ground up, from grass-roots**. Return the power to the individual and the family, on a solid local home base.

All nation-state governments composed of political parties together with their overarching brotherhoods, have lost all credibility in the eyes of the people. That shows the ever-rising tide of demonstrations and rioting against them.

Throw them out and unite in small core-communities, there where mutual advantages and interests coincide.

Small localised communities where every member can see what is going on, should form the core of regional alliances. These regional alliances could then join up in regional leagues.

Tax collection, the legislative, the executive and the police should always be under local management. The local authority can then decide how much money will be passed on to the regions or higher up, where it should be applied for and what share of the local contributions should be passed on to a regional defence force. As the present national and international laws have become so biased, confusing and open to multiple interpretation they should be totally thrown out and be replaced by clean, unbiased new laws written from scratch and based on local interests and the natural laws of Nature.

Each person should have the freedom of choice in which local or regional community and under what constitution and laws he wishes to live. But on the other hand also each local or regional community should have the final decision in who they will accept as residents. Such mutual arrangement between the individual and the local authority will keep the local communities competitive and make their residents responsible citizens.

No community, local or regional, should ever extend any internal privileges which would infringe on free and open competition.

Science and Education:

The scientific establishment under their 'peers' system has solidly calcified. Not a single great new idea has seen the light since Einstein published his e=mc2.

Fresh new ideas presented by young students have no chance to see the daylight, as the 'peers' will never ever concede that their established (entrenched!) ideas might be faulty.

For instance, Science remains misguided and blind, and keeps stubbornly clinging to its erroneous view of the overall structure and on-goings in the Universe as consisting but of lifeless matter. Restricted to its myopic view, Science has cut itself off from all that goes on in the 'greater life' of the Universe.

Science just cannot see the Universe in its wholeness and as a living being as described in "The Cosmos of Time".

And then to think that astronomy is not the only calcified branch of Science!

Total reform of higher education is needed. Independent scientific councils, - free from any peers composed of scientists and already indoctrinated senior students -, preferably from other universities and faculties should be established to bring elasticity back to scientific

thought and to evaluate new ideas and theories in objectivity.

Scientific media with an emphasis on the dictatorial Wikipedia,

Nature Magazine, and the Scientific American, must be obliged to

publish new ideas and theories presented by outsiders and accept the
advertising thereof, even if these go against their own convictions.

On the basic educational level: parents should be free to choose to which school their children go and what to learn. The schools on the other hand should be free to teach their own choosen programs. The State should have no voice in educational matters.

Restoring people's 'Ego'

The road to freedom does not exclusively depends on just abolishing debt slavery and re-installing the incorruptible gold and silver. More important still, are the restoration of personal independence and the individual freedom of action.

To restore people's confidence in their own capacities and selfreliance, their 'podemos' (we can do it)! That will be the greatest hurdle to over-come.

Give people back their 'ego' and make them 'human' again! Getting rid of the slave mentality of accepting everything and doing everything as told.

Enact legislation to restore the family as the cornerstone of society.

Nature grows from grass-roots into systems within systems and if it does not want to risk an early death of its wholeness, Nature sees to it that all its grass-roots stay protected.

The individual and his family should always be and stay the main underlying driving-force and empowered decision maker of society.

Free the people from mandatory payments for social, medical, oldage, educational, religious and government programs. Leave it up to the individual himself to decide where he wishes to cover himself and what to support.

All those socialistic promises of security from the cradle to the grave, peddled by the sly politicians, are rapidly fading into fatamorganas. There is no money left in pension funds and medical aid. No more job security and millions out of work. No more money for the maintenance of infra structure. But never enough money for the obese bureaucracy and mal-investments.

People will soon find out, that the treasuries have no real money left in the kitty and that the governments are at the end of their rope and at the mercy of the fiat Banksters. Neither can be relied on or trusted any longer.

That means that from now on everybody will have to learn again to fend for himself.

People must be made responsible again for their own deeds, for the upbringing of their children and care for their elderly parents and grandparents. Only where there are no children or grandchildren to look after the elderly, or in the case of orphans, only there should the community help.

When will the people find out to their own great surprise, that they will be much better off without all these pushed, wasteful and political-motivated government programs, where all their tax contributions disappear into the big black hole feeding the hungry bloating bureaucracy, the corruption and the Bankers pockets. That the politicians and the parties they voted for are nothing less than useless parasites. And most important, that they will now see much more in their own kitties than before after having discarded the politicians and their parties holding nothing but hollow promises.

The sooner the better: kick the old guards out, together with all their obsolete, biased and crooked legislations, conventions, agreements and obligations. Restart again with a fresh beginning. Rewrite all the outdated constitutions, including the bill-of-rights, where obligations are never mentioned! Go back to transparent small and efficient local governments, that are limited in their power and where the people know who is who.

But people should not forget that rights come with obligations and responsibility. That without contributing to the general welfare, adhering to its disciplines and morals, society cannot exist.

There is no other way for people than the hard way to learn to **think** again and become **responsible again** for their own deeds and not run around behind leaders like a bunch of headless chickens.

Don't wait, but act! There is not much time left! The parasites are now going for our very ego, our soul, our lust for life.

But the great question is:

Do people still have the will and guts left to retake and defend their **ego** or are they already so down beaten that they will surrender and humanity will end up as a termite society?

Gold and Silver

Declare **gold and silver to be the sole legal tender** and *leave it to private enterprise* to put gold and silver coinage into circulation. To facilitate its circulation, defined in metric units of weight, standard pureness and content, backed by electronic control facilities.

People need a solid anchor in the form of personal possession of real tangible gold and silver. It does not matter how little, it gives a feeling of self-esteem, self-reliance and a basis for 'podemos', 'wecan-do-it'. Besides that, it provides anonymity.

Precious metals are 'ego' builders, promoters of individuality. They foster feelings of independence, and most importantly, of freedom. Give people back their 'ego' and you will rid them of their slave mentality!

A country where the *people* hold the gold and the silver is free, prosperous and healthy. A country where an elite holds the gold and the silver is unbalanced and poses a danger to the people and the world.

Gold in the hands of the citizens is the guardian of freedom and independence. In the hands of the State and the Banks it stands for serfdom.

If the Merchant of Debt would not have deviated and started speculating with the blood and mirror of human activity, the value and the free flow of intrinsic money, - Nature's given gold and silver -, and replaced it with his virtual paper and digital fiat money, then we would now not have to fight this mortal battle to rid us of this deadly, blood sucking money-virus, which is threatening to degrade humanity from being dignified human beings to that of slaving termites.

Only money of intrinsic value or 100% based on intrinsic value must be allowed to circulate.

The creation and all circulation of money without a 100% backing of intrinsic values must be declared illegal.

People will go for the real gold and silver money because they trust it. I pings and sings! But that does not mean that verification would not be required. Verification and standardisation are the crux for the success of gold and silver to be accepted and circulate as global money.

With standardization, automated verifiers, automatic electronic secure deposit and transfer machines, who would still need the banks?

I imagine a world with gold and silver proper, circulating without interest obligation, without the loan-sharks eating half the profits and without its value being arbitrarily fixed and controlled, but rather circulating unrestricted.

There should also be a choice, a competition between currencies. That is why there should also be silver circulating parallel to gold.

The relative value between silver and gold should keep adjusting automatically without any interference between public offer and demand. People must be free to use and save either in gold or in silver, choosing between the two.

Everything saved today would keep its value over time and unlike all present hollowed-out paper retirement pensions would not have lost the greater part of their values through inflating, speculating, politics and parasites.

Will people never learn, that all fiat paper savings and pension funds have always ended up worthless? And that people always would have been far better off by saving in gold or silver, instead of entrusting dubious third parties with their savings! Gold cannot be altered or obliterated. It exhorts the truth. It is incorruptible.

Gold and silver must circulate unrestricted, free from interference as legal tender, always passively as servant and enzyme of the economy.

Never allow usury to return anymore by passing the Red Line! Money should never dictate!

Neither should there ever be interference with gold and silver valuation. The free market should take care of that. The moment their value is interfered with, the equilibrium is lost and the world will turn rudderless. The independence of the value of money is the anchor the world turns around.

NB: no opinion about the circulation of digital money as for example Bitcoin, is here as yet expressed. Development thereof, its trustworthiness, security, durability and acceptability still need to prove themselves over time.

History coming full Circle

In the sixth and fifth centuries BC, the Greeks ousted their tyrants and Solon, the great philosopher gave Athens the world's first democratic constitution.

During the same period the Greeks introduced the first ever standardized coinage, which became accepted throughout the whole of the Mediterranean basin and the Middle East. It gave a phenomenal boost to trade, travel and cultural exchange.

In the fourth century BC, the Athenian League was established and the combined treasuries of the member states, as if it were a modern Global Reserve Bank, were put under joint custody on the island of Delos (off-shore).

The freedom of civil initiative, coupled with democratic laws and a free-floating means of exchange, brought one of the greatest advancements in human history. The arts, culture, construction, philosophy, learning and inventions, all thrived and prospered.

The end came when Rome's 'Financial Grandees' took over from the Greeks. Manipulation, speculation and corruption became the norm.

The gold and silver contend of the currency was steadily reduced till it became worthless. Rome collapsed, was overrun by the Vandals and the world entered the Dark Ages, that lasted for one thousand years.

The Free Flow of Money

There should never ever be interference in the **bloodstream** of life. For human society this means never any interference by us humans in the circulation of money.

Money is the blood of society!

Money should circulate free from interference, never play an active regulating function from above, but only serve as mirror and facilitator of social activity.

That is why Nature blessed us with gold and silver.

No more paper money, usury, loan and credit enslavement and dictatorship by an IMF, World Bank, BIS and so on.....not even on a fractional gold standard. Only pure tangible gold and silver will do.

Money should be free to circulate and be transferrable.

Physical gold or silver will service spot transactions up to a certain amount. Digital electronics, solidly anchored in precious metals will service the transfer of greater amounts and over distance.

After having taken the Merchant into the lime-light and having opened the eyes of the public to his criminal finance practices and manipulations through his ill-obtained exclusive rights and his biased control over the world-wide money flow, - through for instance SWIFT, IBAN and the likes — it must be clear that his exclusive control over the world-wide flows of money must radically be stripped away from him, before he can do more harm.

To be ceded to:

Institutions that can prove that they were never connected to the Merchant before. Whatever individual or company,

that can provide the necessary guaranties, could serve as transferagent. With the condition that all transactions executed for *companies* and associations should be public. Whereas all private money transfers, should be allowed to proceed in all anonymity via selected **guardian trusts** that offer digital safekeeping and general payment and transfer services

Advanced digital electronics are well capable to take care of any gold and silver in secure transactions in all privacy.

The money on a private gold deposit account will always be your gold money, in such way that the managing trust has no access to it, cannot see it, nor get to it.

Anonymity in private financial transactions will be guaranteed.

The guardian trust will not know the owner's identity or amount deposited and

The receiving party will never know where the money originated. Notwithstanding that the owner will still have proof of transfer.

Cyber gold money can reside under the direct secure electronic control of its owner in digital safe deposits at the custodian trust.

Gold and silver in espèce will be anonymously available from automated cash gold dispensers.

The world-wide free flow of money will only become possible after the people's money, the gold and the silver will have been restored as the underlying means of exchange and money will have pulled back from the red line of debt usury and slavery and returned to its natural passive role as store of value and purely as mirror and facilitator of human activity.

It is exactly the latter that is the sine-qua-non to rebuild a balanced future for society, anchored in grass-roots and ready for a stable future.

The von-Mises School might be guided by honorable intensions, but simply proposing a return to fractional banking backed by gold and silver, does not go far enough by miles to resurrect human prosperity. Von-Mises theory does not get down to the very heart of the problem: the criminality of interest-usury.

So be warned: if gold and or silver were only resurrected with the sole task of serving as reference standards in a gold *fractional* banking system as suggested by von Mises, then gold and silver would soon end up as before as prisoners of politics and greed, concentrated at the top and never circulate freely again.

I emphase that it is not purely the resurrection of a gold and silver standard that will get the world back on track, but the overriding plain **necessity to get rid of usury.** Because as long as there will be usury and debt, even in the case of gold and silver, so long will society consist but of slaves and masters.

Once the above rules and changes will be in place by persuasion or force, all financial spider-webbing and pyramidal concentration of wealth by the Master of Debt will come to an end. All his networked corporations, conglomerates, trusts and funds will automatically break up and smelt away like snow.

It is an absolute must, that all tampering and interference in monetary and financial affairs shall be fully eliminated! And that all angles and loopholes to cheat and corrupt will be covered.

To that end, the currency and financial markets have to function in the most simple, automatic and transparent way. No single entity should ever get into a position to take control of the money flow anymore. No concentration of capital, no leveraging, pyramiding, nor spider-webbing in anonymity should ever again get the slightest chance.

After the clean-up, the next and final chapters should serve as a guideline of how we should organize our lives in future to best fit in with Nature and the Great Living Universe, we are part of and avoid the risk to fall back into the same mistakes as before.

The Essence and Rules of the Living Universe

Science in its myopic view of a Universe consisting but of dead matter, here and there sparsely sprinkled with life, has till today kept itself exclusively restricted to life based on carbon.

But, the essay "The Cosmos of Time" has proved, there is a 'Force' that has created, expands and guides the Universe and all it contains, by building layer upon layer of interrelated systems of a manifold of atoms, that each show growth, metabolism, functional activity, continual change and final death, the same requisites that Science uses to define life. Then our Universe in its wholeness must likewise be a great living being in itself, as it is fully covered by the scientific definition!

All the manifestations of this Force of Life, starting from the birth of the Universe, fit in with Science's 'to carbon restricted definition of life'. So why not expand the scientific definition of 'life' to all matter not exclusively carbon to cover the whole Universe?

To have grown from a singularity to the mighty Universe it is today, the underlying Force of Time - of Life - must have been guided by certain rules and disciplines, that were either inherited by birth or developed through billions of years through trial and error.

For us little humans it is of utmost importance to understand the basic disciplines of Universal Life - we shall call **bionomics** - that have had their validity proven since the birth of the Universe. And being ourselves an intimate part and member of this Living Universe, even if not more than a minuscule part of it, we had better adhere and live by the **bionomic** rules and disciplines and coordinate and synchronize our own lives and actions in accordance.

Bionomics reflects how Greater Nature has organized itself in the most efficient way. Its rules and disciplines are easy to spot, to observe and to analyse, Nature knows no secrets. To enlighten the reader, a copy of the chapter "The Essence of the Living Universe", taken from the book "The Cosmos of Time" has been added below.

We cannot afford vagaries and live happy-go-lucky our own way, deviating from Nature's established rules.

Ignoring Nature where harmony reigns, will only bring us into trouble and in confrontation with all other life around.

We need to live with Nature's disciplines, its checks and balances and forget our own wishful but misguided fantasies and utopias.

We have to fit in!
If notNature will discard us.

Extracts from "The Cosmos of Time"

- Time, the creating and directing Force of Life, is one-directional
- It created a Living Universe with an 'Ego' and 'Lust for Life', from its wholeness down to each individual part
- The Universe is composed of the great Matrix Sphere dotted with archipelagos of three-dimensional life surrounding it
- The Mother Matrix creates and grows its archipelagos of threedimensional life from the ground-up, in steps, from small atoms to ever more complex systems
- Each higher system is composed of and depends on the health of the manifolds of underlying systems
- To survive, the wholeness of the Universe has preference over the needs of its constituent parts
- Each single creation has its individual ego, characteristics and functions in the hierarchy of the system that it forms part of.
- Each system, be it an atom, a galaxy or a higher carbon creation is not only connected directly through its constituent parts to the Mother Matrix, but also indirectly in its totality as a system
- Through zillions of years Nature has advanced through trial and error till the best of the best resulted
- The more complex systems become, the more their individual constituents tend to grow symbiotically and the more they will join up, physically and spiritually.
- Each little member and part in the Universe has its 'function' in the hierarchy of systems, either in its singularity or in community and should comply with the function assigned to.

- Alliances of systems happen when mutual advantages and interests coincide. From atoms and molecules sharing 'electrons', up to humans joining together along social laws of mutual interest. Every member, every little part of the Universe, every system in itself, is destined, or strives to be, part of a familiar greater system, so as to be least vulnerable.
- The Universe will not tolerate any intrusion in its wholeness.
 Neither will each system within tolerate interference in its own structure. That is why each system has its own built-in checks and balances.
- Each little part and member of the Universe has its specific natural enemies and competitors, installed by Nature, that are there to keep it on its guard and not to degenerate. Not only to keep itself in shape, but implicit the greater system it is part of!
- In order to improve on its creations in containment of its greater self, Nature (the Universe) applies open and direct competition, which amongst others includes the outlines of Darwin's "survival of the fittest" and "partner selection".
- Competition, up to war, occurs by whatever means available and that includes intelligence. It is basic for the self-improvement and maintenance of the Universe as a whole.
- The moment that open and free competition is throttled by the dominance of one party, natural competition would fall away and over time the dominant party itself would be doomed into oblivion, as lack of competition causes loss of elasticity and calcification with degeneration to follow.
- Everything that is run-down, outdated, lost out in competition, not used any longer, obsolete or does not serve its function in the grand design any longer, Nature (the Universe) discards and replaces where practical.

- These are the ways open to the Universe to keep the necessary elasticity to exploit and adapt to new opportunities and to grow and expand toward the most promising future for itself in its wholeness.
- Nature builds from grass-root diversity. If on-going grass-root growth in a system is impeded, the whole system on top of it is destined to die.
- Nature eternally rejuvenates. It expands, replaces and re-invents itself by on-going creation and recycling by way of the Recoil Force, black holes, death and renewal.
- The latter with the condition that each new creation has to fit in with the already established order of Nature's wholeness.

And do not forget **the Yin and the Yang**. Nature is balanced and for everything there is an opposite: positive - negative, male - female, good - evil, the play between astro-jets and recoil....

But ... never *completely* balanced, so as to keep the door always slightly open for a chance to eventual change!

I invite the reader to add on

Bionomics

Bionomics means to follow Nature's way and passively pursue to fit into the 'Web-of Life' that Nature has spun since early days. But what happened?

People have become the slaves of the Merchant of Debt who directs growth from the top where he can optimize profits and calls it 'economics'.

Whereas, in bionomics, growth should sprout naturally from grassroots on the open field of free competition, to the benefit of society as a whole.

The Merchant of Debt interferes in the bloodstream of society, inflating and directing the flow of money where he can optimize profits.

Whereas in bionomics the *blood-stream* of money is *passive* and flows to facilitate human activities on a broad front, not to direct them.

The Merchant distorts ecology to what fits him best. He imposes on Nature and expects that Nature will accept his views and actions:

Carbon-dioxide reduction, weed control, mono-cultures, chemical spraying against insect and bacterial pests, disinfectants in general, fighting epidemics with lockdowns and vaccinations without proof of them being effective, all his actions based purely on profit-making, supported by fake concepts held by paid 'scientists' and their 'presumed' all-round knowledge of Nature's Web of Life.

The Merchant interferes with cloud seeding, water purification with chemicals, air-conditioning with stale air, re-circulated ad infinitum. Recently even talking of changing the course of the jet streams! And the latest from Bill Gates: dusting the atmosphere with carbon particles to cut down on the sunlight reaching the earth.

Can this misguided 'Scientific Knowledge of Everything' ever be stopped from interfering and endangering the balanced ways of Nature?

Yes, there is a way:

First of all by eradicating the main culprit the 'Virus of Debt', implanted by the Merchant of Debt, that kills man's natural relationship with Nature and replaces it with its ego-centric actions.

Secondly, by restoring the natural relationships of old between man and Nature. Take man back to living in contact with nature. Show him the greatness of the heavens above. Show him the happiness of family life.

Thirdly remind the people that we all are members and part of a Living Universe and should to live in accordance:

Cleaning the grey, dusty skies of today to return to blue skies of yesterday. Getting rid of all the air pollution, so people can breathe again.

Dimming and reducing the artificial night-light illuminations, so that people can look up again to the twinkling stars and enjoy the greatness of the Great Mother Universe they belong to.

Levelling the cities' cement-block high-rises down to earth, replacing them with fitting habitats with wide open spaces of green in between.

Getting rid of sound pollution, blaring electronics, motor and machine beats and so on.

Give the power of grass-roots back to the people.

Make the local communities economically autonomous, so they can survive on their own and be independent from far away supplies controlled by unknown forces. Give the people back their ego and self-confidence.

Slay all the evil forces that thrive on putting fear into people's minds, where peace and harmony should reign.

Unmask the governments and institutions that exploit the fear of the people, for instance a virus epidemic, far less violent than historic flu, to control the masses, backed up by 'bought' scientists, subjugating the people under unconstitutional laws, police and army, without ever having bothered to investigate the matter.

Unmask the Scientists that make people think that they possess the holy grail of wisdom, but are no better than fortune tellers.

Show the narrowmindedness of the reigning religions that still keep themselves restricted to local earth-hell-heaven relationship, blind to the greatness of the Living Universe, that embraces us as its children. Step out into its immensity, where one does not need religion, because one feels and knows that one belongs to the Greater Life.

Like the Great Living Cosmos is composed in three stages, the Force of Life as the first-dimension, the Mother Matrix as the second and the physical Creation the third, as described in the "Cosmos-of-Time".

So are we ourselves composed as part of the Universe' in three different steps:

The first, the basic Force: our 'Lust of Life',

The second, - we feel but cannot see - , our soul which floats in the e.m. field surrounding the Mother Matrix, that creates, maintains and unites all Cosmic Life in its totality as well in its singularity, inclusive our own!

The third, our physical-self, sprouted forth by design from our soul, that gives us the illusion that we are living free in a visible independent Universe.

Designed by the Force Life our physical body, that finds its roots in our soul and inhabits but a minuscule spot in the Greater Life, must always stay in harmony with all other life around. If not, the consequences will be ours.

"The Universe"

I am All and all is Mine.

I am the life of streaming power,

I am the life that infuses all.

Since earliest times I willed and created 'Till the best of the best the result of my efforts. Before Me was nothing, neither time, neither fields, Nor spaces with marvels of life and creation. Only thoughts hung suspended in silence in nowhere. Awaiting My nod of final approval.

And then I separated the future from the past
And out of nothingness, divided left from right
To form between the two the Mother Matrix, whose
Surface holds the roots of all that came thereafter.
And from the Matrix up and down,
I split opposing powers and made them strong or weak,
And put a heaviness in all, as bondage to the Matrix.

I merely thought of Time: the gates of heaven opened And all the forces of creation burst out from their eternal rest. To push with lightning speed The borders of My reign Far out beyond the reach of any fantasy.

Whirling, excited, with vigour, vibration, Rushing, expanding to unknown horizons, Full of lust of life, linked in harmony. Taking along on their unending journey My power, My kingdom, Myself, all My own. All opposite matters look equal in power,
Yet slightly unbalanced, I designed them to be:
In space and in time, slight' asymmetric,
Which gives them their movement Their own sense of being But in the end enslaves them to Me.

I care for the simplest of minuscule beings, For micro-forces swirling around; Sometimes in freedom and fleeing to nowhere; Sometimes together in harmonious dance. Always attracting, repulsing each other, Ordered and guided by the force of My will.

And out of Nothing I built the most complex, Bundling free forces to nodules of matter, Slaving them to the grid of design.

Condensing and building huge concentrations
From primeval matter dispersed throughout space
Into galaxies sparkling with life and pretension.
Stepping stones placed on My path of expansion,
Joining together into still greater clusters.
Supporting the vaults of infinite heavens:
That is My dwelling and that is My reign!

From billions of fountains of stellar creations
I shoot stars out on spiraling paths,
Seeking their ways to the furthest of yonder,
Taking My light to the darkest horizons,
Bestowing My bounty and beauty on all.

Through the warmth of their radiant rays,
Stars ringed with the fertilized dust of the Cosmos.
Bear children in orbits in resonance balanced.
Young planets, enjoying celestial ball-games
'Till finding their places in the heavenly skies,
Amidst illustrious parents
And the silent remainder of previous sway.

Carbon, the stone at the base of My temple,
The strongest in force to unite with them all;
I willed it in structure, in simple design.
I made it a mirror, symmetrically sided,
Its bonds with a choice for left or for right.
I made it a chariot for free-roaming life,
From the life of the smallest of all living creatures
To the most ruthless and arrogant one.
My life and My blood are beheld by them all.

And all I create in uncountable numbers,
Just to select only one as the best.
The rest I destroy, without tears of regret,
Without feelings of sorrow and no obligation,
As it's only Myself I create and destroy.

I constantly change little parts of My nature,
Destroying a bit so that others may thrive.
Sometimes I act to annul complete species
Which have grown to disorder and foreign align;
Which don't fit any longer in the wholeness of Mine.

And once they've served My purpose,
Or when they are old and spent
Or when they lose their feelings
For Me, their mother-soul;
Get blinded by their vainness
And think they march alone
And are no part of Me,
That they don't need to care for

My other life around;
When only rights they claim for
And no more duty counts
I smash them and annul them,
Assigning better ones.

And might they look for knowledge,
To know from where they came,
To understand the heavens,
What makes the atom's frame,
I fool them in their efforts.
With but their eyes as tools,
Which only note appearance
And not what stands behind.
With only math and eyesight
The mind stays empty though.
The truth of all that matters
Lies in the innermost,
Embedded in the Matrix
Unchallenged power glows.

I am the Universe and I am the law.

And the law is for Me as the law is for all

Even I will be called by the Fates, My own children,

To return from the farest of borders

From unmovable silence and palest cold,

Retreating the roads of My former expansion,

Sweeping away all My fruits of creation,

Herding, encircling now lifeless matter,

Compressing to nothing, what was formerly all.

All once created crushed, flattened,

Sucked back through the funnel of space,

back to rejoin the vibrating power

That reigns from Time Zero,

The vibrating soul of the Cosmos.

And reborn again, out of emptiest darkness, In light-rays, as blinding as flickering swords, With My might rebuilt to unlimited power I become again, and always will be.

I am the light of power and beauty,
In the sky, on the flowers and the smile on a face.
But I am also the shadow of menacing darkness
Relentless, devouring all straying too near.
I will the smallest and I will the greatest
All divinely embedded on the maze of My thoughts.

H.S.

The Author

Hans Schicht is an independent entrepreneur. Born in Amsterdam. He has lived and worked on four continents. He is well informed and connected to what happens in the worlds of finance and trade, the metal markets and the electronic media. He pioneered and managed the then only rare-earth-thorium mine at the time in Brazil on the forgotten southern coast of the State of Bahia. He has traveled all over the world looking for profitable mining ventures. From 1986 to 1993 he was actively involved in building an electronic information company in South Africa, which became a leading information and service provider on the French Minitel, the forerunner of the PC and the World Wide Web.

Comments

The below comments written between 1998 and 2008 make it abundantly clear that I do not stand alone:

We thank you for sharing your work and wisdom with our readership from 144 countries.

Jan 3rd 1999

Best regards,

Vronsky www.gold-eagle.com

I'm shocked too, but even more, baffled!

There are numerous highly informative editorial and analysis writings here on the GoldEagle. Some that I have found most enlightening just now are articles by Hans Schicht, Lawrence Parks, and Greg Pickup.

Chris, Mar 22, 12:14

The current article, The United Weimar Republics by Hans Schicht is the best article I've ever read on your site. If you have any of his previous editorials please publish them and please publish any future ones. S.

I just read "Gold in Macro Perspective" from Hans Schicht: Extremely interesting and on the point! Jan 3rd 1999 Chris M. Caracas, Venezuela

I was reading your book "Towards Cyber Money. The book really cuts through all the technical stuff in the middle that I am sure is designed to confuse the man in the street. Well thanks for insight into the world financial markets

Peter, Cape Town 1 Sep 98

Crystal Ball 2000 Excellent reading!

Pay attention to similarities between the composition of the armed forces of the declining roman empire and the US army after draft abolition.- Wolf, Bahamas It is rare that I read an article and agree totally with what is said. Your article is that rare exception. You state that you are becoming a revolutionary in your old age. I do not know how old you are but I do hope that your words will be an inspiration to the younger generations to fight once again for the principles of freedom and justice. Doreen U.

"The Turning Dollar Tide" Great essay of yours up at Gold-Eaglereally enjoyed it as did many others. Bill M.,31 Aug 2000 Congratulations on your excellent essay! I concur wholeheartedly with your assessment, and the final judgment: the West is very tired. Amen! Hugo S.P. 6. Febr 2001

"The Merchants of Debt" a must read. Hans Schicht's analysis of the cabal IMHO is a peek through the veil of deceit. B. S., July 24th 2001,

If you have not read "Bubbles to Boiling" by Schicht, take a few minutes what a realistic summation of the illness that exists worldwide. It is excellent & sobering. Mr. Schicht is one of my favorite reads.. great writer. Looking forward to his latest editorial DJB.

You are a man of profound insight and keen observation. I applaud your most recent essay. It tells me you are a man of mature years as I am, and that you see the world as it is and not as the Pollyanna's see it. Joseph M.

'The Party is Over'

Just a short note to mention the above piece has already received 101,261 hits as of mid-night last. Great Show!

I. M. Vronsky Editor & Partner – Gold-Eagle

Thoroughly enjoy your essays, but this one, The Wealth Transfer Machine, belongs in the Hall of Fame.

David M C.

The Wealth Transfer Machine

This is a most interesting article. You are to be commended for your ability to write with inordinate simplicity and depth about this topic,

and with great clarity. You did a great job. Gigi Italy.

As a regular reader may say that your 'The Wealth-Transfer Machine' is one of the best ever. Luigi B.

After 30 years of institutional sales on the street in NYC I can attest that you have it right dead right I see no peaceful solution it might even be worse than you think. Looking foreward to your future essays Bill O'C.

Financial Spider Webbing:

A subscriber has mailed me your fantastic article referenced above. I have come to the same conclusion, i.e., that America is being run by a gang of elites I refer to as "Amerika", and that the world incorrectly identifies the entire country with its hidden leadership.

a.w. Houston

Take-Off North Feb 20 2005:

Very worthwhile article by Hans Schicht on bonds, gold and the usd. If he's right, 2005 will be an important turning point.

The Death Of Banking:

Dear Mr. Schicht,

I will write you more later, but for now I want to say, BRAVO, BRAVO, BRAVO, and again I say BRAVO. You put into words my thoughts of recent days and months far better than I would ever be able to.

Thank you and did I say BRAVO.

Sincerely, S W, Bronson

Dear Hans!

I am deeply impressed by your interesting article.

It seems to me the most astonishing that it confirms an old Koranic wisdom, prohibiting to take "growth" (percentage).

Best regards, Olga Boot, Moscow Russia

I thank you all for your support! H.S.





When millions are driven into eternal debt slavery through financial manipulation by only a handful of Financial Grandees, does such not count as crimes against humanity like war-crimes?

And should the ones responsible not likewise be prosecuted as criminals?



